Indian Hills General Improvement District
Board of Trustees

Chairman Vice Chairman Secretary/Treasurer Trustee Trustee
Dale Dunham Robert Stulac Vicky Lufrano Russ Siegman Robert Garcia

December 20, 2023
Regular Board Meeting 6:00 P.M.
District Board Room
3394 James Lee Park Road
Carson City, NV
89705
(775) 267-2805

MISSIONSTATEMENT
The Mission of the District is to provide, within its Charter, those public facilities and services which
maintain and improve the guality of life of its resident families and 1o maintain and operate those
Jacilities and services at the highest quality and in the most cost-effective manner possible, with the
intent to continue to do so for a growing population of residents.

It is the intent of the Board of Truslees to protect the dignity of citizens who wish to comment before the Board. It
is also the Board of Trustees’ wish to provide the citizens of the district with an environment that upholds the
highest professional standards.

In order to ensure that every citizen desiring 10 speak before the Board has the opportunity to express histher
opinion, it is requested that the audience refrain from making comments, hand clapping or making any remarks or
gestures that may interrupt, interfere, or prevent the speaker from commenting on any present or future project.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Depannment of Agriculture policy, IHGID is prohibited from discriminating on
ihe basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability {(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To
file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W.,
Washington, D.C. 20250-94 10, or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity
provider, employer, and lender.

Communication for Hearing Impaired: Nevada Relay Service is available by calling 711. The TTY or HCO
(hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868, Voice only is 800-326-6888, VCO (voice carry over) is
800-326-4013.

Notice to Persons with Disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special assistance or
accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the District Office in writing a1 3394 James Lee Park Road,
Carson City, NV 89703, or by calling 267-2805 at least 24 hours in advance,

Following is the Agenda, which is also posted on IHGID's website at: www.indianhillsnevada.com



AGENDA

6:00 P.M. — Regular Meeting
1. Call to Order - Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Interest Comment (No Action)

The public may comment on any subject that is pertinent to IHGID. The public may comment on any item that is on
this agenda at the time it is discussed. Therefore, the public is encouraged and permitted to make comments on any
non-agenda items during the public interest comment period. Comments may be limited by the discretion of the
Chair and may not exceed three (3) minutes. Please note that the Board is prohibited by law from deliberating or
taking action on issues raised by the public that are not listed on this agenda.

4, Approval of Agenda-Chairman
Items on this agenda may be taken out of order. Two or more agenda items may be combined

for consideration. Any item appearing on this agenda may be removed, or its discussion
delayed at any time.

e Motion
o Vote

5. Discussion and possible action to accept the annual audit for fiscal year ending June 30,
2023. Presentation by District audit firm Steele and Associates. (Jonathan Steele/General
Manager, Chris Johnson)

¢ Board of Trustees Discussion
Open Public Comment
¢ Close Public Comment

6. Reports to the Board:

a. General Manager Report

1. Administrative

2. Water

3. Wastewater
b. District Accountant Report
c. Engineer Report

d. Attorney Report

o Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public
¢ Close Public Comment

7. Discussion and possible action to adopt a performance evaluation form for the General
Manager.

(Vice Chairman, Bob Stulac, Secretary/Treasurer, Vicky Lufrano and Administrative
Services Supervisor/Human Resources, Brooke Thompson)

¢ Board of Trustees Discussion
# Open Public Comment
o Close Public Comment



10.

11

12.

Discussion only regarding use of district vehicles and equipment on public and private roads
and easements within IHGID. (Trustee, Garcia)

e Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
¢ Close Public Comment

Discussion only regarding the District Personnel Policy, NRS 281.210, and Resolution
2009R-02 regarding Trustee concerns of employing family members of existing employees.
(General Manager, Chris Johnson)

e Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
e Close Public Comment

Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the November 15, 2023,
Board Mecting.

e Board of Trustees Discussion
¢ Open Public Comment
¢ (Close Public Comment

Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence

Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications received
by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the district. No
action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request such an item or topic
be placed on a future agenda.

Adjournment

This agenda is posted at www.indianhillsnevada.com, https://notice.nv.gov and at the following locations:

As of 8:30 A.M., December 15,2023, by 8 e

District Main Office, 3394 James Lee Park Road

i

7 1.\»C
;‘1 UMU‘ '

»

e/

i



AGENDA ITEM 5.

Discussion and possible action to accept the
annual audit for fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.
Presentation by District audit firm Steele and
Associates.

(Jonathan Steele/General Manager, Chris
Johnson)



Indian Hills General improvemnien ict
Financial Stat
June 30

OK




INDIAN HILLS GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BASIC FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Statemgnt of et Position

Statement &f Activities

General Fund, Balance Sheet and Recontiliation of te Balarise Sheet

to the Statement of Net Pbsition

General Fund, Statement of Revenues, Expenditutes, arfd Changesip Fupd
Balance - Budget and Actual and Reconciliation of tfie Sfatément of Revepue;
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activilies
Enterprise Funds, Statemenj of et Position

Enterprise Funds, Statement of Revenue, Expense and-Changes T Nét.Position
Entergirisé Funds, Statement of GastiFlows

Nptes o Financial Stafements

REQUIREDSUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Enterpfise Punds, Stajement of Revanue, Expenditures
&nd Changes irl Net Positign » Budget and Actual
Supplenientary Pension Information

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BGeneral Fund Schedule of Expenditures
Enferprise Funds; Schedule of Services and Supplies

REPORT OGN INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE

Itdependent Auditor's Repbrt on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
‘and on Compliancg and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performeddn Atcordance with Government Auditing Standards

AUDITCR'S COMMENTS

10

11- 42
13
14

15 - 16

17 - 34

36
37-38

40 - 41

42

44-45

47 - 49



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of the
Indian Hills General Improvement District

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the government activities, business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Indian Hills General improvement
District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above presentfairy, in all material respects, the financial
position of the governmental activities of the Indian Hills General Improvement District as of June 30, 2023,
and the changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordapce with.accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards.%aﬁnerally acgecepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits cofitained ih-Governmeat Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Ouf rgsponsibilitiss under thgsestandards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audrtﬂ of the finaricigl Statements Sqefion of our report. We
are required to be independent of the Indian Hills Geheral Improdemient District, and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical raquirernepts reldfing togur audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficiert ang appropriate o provide & basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for.the Financial Statgments

Management is respgngible for the.preparatign and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting pfinciples geperally. accepted In, the United States of America; and for the design,
implementationy‘ang maintenance of hternal cantrél relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statefnenfs that are free fromy material misstafsment, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the:financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, consideretiin the aggregate, that faisé substantial doubt about the Indian Hills General Improvement
District's ability'{o cootinue as a going gongern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any curfaptly kpnown informatign that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Responsibilities ‘for the'Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain regsonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulting from errar, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
identity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Indian Hills General Improvement District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaludle the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions gr evénts, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Indian Hills General IniprovementDistricks ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governarice rqg.'arding, ambpg other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, atyd certaifrinternal control-rafated matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the Unjted States of Amenca require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison infofmation, ané pénsign infarmation on pages 4 through 7,
36 and 37 through 38, respectively, be presented to supplément the' basicfinancial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of manageryfent and, &lthough fot a partofthd basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accountind Standards Board, who cofisjders it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basif financial statemehts In_an Appfopriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We hawﬁed certain limited procedures to the required management discussion and
analysis, and pensign‘information.in accordanca with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of Americd, which ctonsjsted,.of inquigies of management about the methods of preparing the
information angdtomparing the informatitn for cohgisténcy with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financiél statements, and othier knowledge we gbtained during our audit of the basic financial
statemenis. We do not express an opifipn 6r provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedureS.do nat provide us with sufficlent evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

The budgetary égmparison information hds bgen subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financia tements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly ta, the underlying’acgbunting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the ba5ig finapcialStajements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generallff accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the budgetary
comparison information is faifly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as
a whole.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Indian Hills General Improvement District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary
information included on pages 40 through 42 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is



fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 11,
2023, on our consideration of the Indian Hills General Improvement District's internal control over financial
reporting and our test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Indian Hills General
improvement District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Carson City, Nevada
December 11, 2023



Indian Hills General improvement District
Management's Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited)
June 30, 2023

The management’s discussion and analysis provides an overview of the District's financial activities for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. Please read it along with the District's financial statements, which follow this
section.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the District. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate
in all material aspects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and
results of the operations of the District; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the District's financial activity have been included.

Financial Highlights

» Capital assets in the Enterprises Fund went up by $318,362.
e Capital assets in the General Fund increased by $19,779

Financlal Overview

The District accounts for its overall financial matters through two primary Funds. The Genheral Fund
{Governmental type activities) accounts for all tax revenues.and-displays allamotints and types of expenses
spent from those tax revenues. The Enterprise Fund {Buﬁn.ass‘ty,pe activitigs} accounts for all non-tax
service revenues produced by utility billings to custorders‘and displays. all amouhts ahd types of expenses
spent from those service fees.

These two funds are maintained entirely separate from gach gther, with pravisigns which allow movement of
monies between them, but only on specifigBogrd approval. These mgvaménts are shown in the financial
statements as transfers in or transfers out.!

Activities funded by the General Fund ingjudeiihe appropriatg sharg of overall District administration, plus
parks and recreation;Storm draifiz-and streals. All costs associaled with these types of activities, from staff
related costs to méfterials and operatidnal supplies are budgeted annually. Annually, by the end of May, the
Board sets a redl estate tax rate fobpropbties within the District, after receiving rate authorization limits from
the State Dapariyrient of Taxation (Taxatidn) by mid Margh.

The District has;on at least seven occasiongin the last 28 years, adopted a tax rate for the year lower than
the rate authbgizedh by Taxation. As thig key decision is made, the Board considers the entire scope of
general fund supportéd activities, to be provided for during the upcoming year, the amount of general fund
reserves, which shquld'be kept in placg forthe future year, and then determines the rate that will produce
those revenues.

Water production, storage, treafmenf and distribution, as well as sewage collection, treatment, effluent
storage and disposal activitlag, for the entire utility district, are the activities which are funded by and
accounted for in the Enterprise Fund. All costs associated with these types of activities, from staff related
costs to materials and operational supplies, are budgeted annually and accounted for separately.

The board reviews the utility rates annually to determine the need for rate increases. Federal and State
regulations or specifically required or internally determined infrastructure improvements, and utility systems
expansion to accommodate growth, all influence the utility rate making function.



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Management's Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited)
June 30, 2023

Budgeting for a specific upcoming year is a function of projecting these rates, currently in effect, across the
number of customers and volumes of usage to predict revenues, project reserves, and plan for systems
improvements

Condensed Financlal Statements

The condensed Statement of Net Position is as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2023 2022 2023 2032, 2023 2022
ASSETS M o
Cumrent & other assets $ 3483256 $ 2761009 $ 7,727,724/ $§ 7,203708 § 11210980 $ 9,964,717
Capital assets 4440241 4711,265 13817973 14400452  qg258214 19,111,417
Non current assets e e 222,103 20412 222,103 227,412
Deferred outflows 248,269 187,587 467,409 369,382 715,678 556,969
Total assets 8,171,766 7,659,861 22,235,209 4 22,200,654 30,406,975, 29,860,515
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 57,627 45,753 560,045 520,096 617,676 565,849
Non current liabilities 566,157 254,904 4,105.548 3,895,000 4,671,705 4,149,904
Deferred outflows 70,527 301,413 333,924 {06,613 _ Abd,451 1,108,026
Total liabilities 694,311 602,070 | 4.999.5;_,? .ﬁ,zz\igg 5,693,832 5,823,779
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 4,424,400 . 4,608,328 10,412,671 10.649.868 14,837,271 15,348,196
Restricted cash 1,618,246 1,115,392 4,189,401 #603,454 5,807,646 4,718,846
Unrestricted 144,809 1,.244:071 2,633 346 2,725,623 4,068,226 3,969,694

Tota! net positian’ 3 TAITA55. $ 7.og_g7sf $ 17.235688 § 16.978.945 § 24.713,143 § 24.036.736

The condgnsed Statement of Activities is a3 follows:

Governmental Actiities Business-Type Aclivities Total
2023 y T2 2023 2022 2023 2022
REVENUE
Charges for services 5 - ¥ - $ 2628228 § 2913500 $§ 2628228 $ 2,913,500
General revenue 12485.572' 1,373,250 36,832 32,307 1,522,404 1,405,657
Transfers . (33447 63,137 33,447 {63,137) . .
Total revenue 1:452,125 1,436,387 2,698,507 2,882,670 4,150,632 4,319,057
EXPENDITURES
General government 275473 270,865 - - 275473 270,865
Public works 434 879 417,072 - - 434,879 417,072
Cuiture & recreation 322,109 284,780 - - 322,109 284,780
Water & sewer - - 2,287,869 2,075,040 2,287,869 2,075,040
Interest expenses - - 102,595 113,958 102,595 113,958
Total expenses 1,032,461 972,717 2,390,464 2,188,998 3,422,925 3,161,715
Change in Net Position $ 419664 § 463,670 $ 308,043 § 693,672 § 727,707 § 1,157,342




Indian Hills General Improvement District
Management's Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited)
June 30, 2023

Overall Financial Poslition and Results of Operations

The General Fund is sufficient to support the activities and programs operated within that fund. A greater
emphasis has been placed on the maintenance of the District roads. This will require, at least the
maintenance of the existing ad valorem tax rate.

The utility operations are under pressure to make some significant and expensive improvement expenditures
over the next few years. This internal pressure is compounded by federal requirements as to the lower
arsenic levels, which have been addressed by the construction of the pipeline from Douglas County. The
District has installed emergency power generators at the District's main production well, the water treatment
plant and the wastewater plant. State required treatments have alsg pul external’pressure on the District.

Operational Changes & Potential Future Impacts

The District has joined forces with Douglas County to build a pipejine'té provide higher:quality water to the
District and to address the Federal arsenic standards. The Districthas feceived grahis ahd loans from the
State of Nevada and USDA. The District received grant commitfignts in the amount bf $1,684,722. The
District received loan commitments in the amount of $2,040,552. Construttjon bp the pipeline.was completed
in the 2013/2014 fiscal year. The repayment period is 40 yearsbut they can g repaid sooner without penalty
if funds are available.

The District is approaching construction build out and eannot relybrgonhection fees paid for by developers
and individuals to make significant improvements in s uility infrastrlcture. “Fherefore, the monthly water and
sewer rates will need to be evaluated on a y hasfs. The District Bpprovied a five year rate plan with
annualincreases reserved for infrastructure fepaijrs during thé 2014-201 $ﬁgﬁaryear. The lastincrease in this
five-year plan was effective September 2018. The District is looking' af a possible rate increase for the
2024/2025 fiscal year

The miles of streets ani the nuniber of parkg antl.public facilities dre about to be stabilized. There is limited
planning for expantied operations. As infrastrycture ages, maintenance costs will still be a challenge.

Utility operational changes, as to qupli and tregtment of water and as to volume and treatment of
wastewataf, are expected to be impacted by the gew state regulations requiring even higher levsl
certifications (ahd increased numbers) of utility operators.

The District hastecelved loans from USDA tg pay for the sewer plant improvements which will be needed to
meet State requirergents, The loan is inhe amount of $1,115,000 payable over 40 years. Construction was
completed in the 2018/20'%4 fiscal yeat.

Budget Variance-General Fund Apalysis

Budgeting commences in late January inside District Administration. By mid-February each governmental
entity is provided preliminary projections from Taxation as to the projected tax revenues {sales taxes and ad
valorem taxes), which are expected to be available to the entities. From these preliminary figures, a
preliminary budget presentation is developed; the final figures come from Taxation in mid-March. The District
adopts its next year budget by the end of May.



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (Unaudited)
June 30, 2023

Capltal Assets & Debt-Current & Future

The District is organized under NRS 318 as a multi-faceted general improvement district. Under this
organization, the District is allowed an upper limit indebtedness of 50% of the assessed value of properties
inside the District. The assessed valuation of the District at June 30, 2023, is in excess of $162,417,896. The
District's debt is currently at $3,305,238. This debt is approximately 2%. This is a healthy debt position and
debt service is manageable in operating budgets.

The utility rate structure of the District is conscious of the depreciation charged against the infrastructure as
an appropriate accounting function. It has not, however, charged the ysers sufficiently to fully cover the
depreciation amounts. The District approved a rate increase effegtive §eptembéir 2014 with the increase
being reserved for infrastructure expenses. In addition, the Distritt budgets 4% of projected net revenue to
reserve for infrastructure expenses.

Management Decisions & Future Impacts

Short term, the most significant potential impacts on the District finanees arb.related to the utility opérations.
Given increasingly higher standards being placed on both the delivery of high guality water angd.thé collection
and treatment of wastewater, as well as the aging of the District's.facilities, wg bélieve greater emphasis will
need to be placed on the collection of depreciation funds. The potential impagts, if realized, will be in the
monthly rates.

Long term, the maintenance and needed upgrade of the!District4 sireels, antl the increased standards for the
maintenance of the extensive storm drain sys{em willimpact jHe Eenera| FundisAlso, the construction of the
pipeline in conjunction with Douglas CountyWill impatt the Enterprise Fingd as the District will be required to
repay the loans taken out to finance the gohstruction. The District's Gghgral Fund should be in rather good
shape for the foreseeable future.

CcoVviD-19

Due to the COVID-38 Global Pandemic:the Dislrict stopped charging late fees during the 2020/2021 fiscal
year. The Qjﬁric_lfalso stopped waterghuloffs as atesuit of the pandemic. The District re-instated late fees
and water$hub off procedures during the 2021/2022 fiscal year.

These revenltigs ate not budgeted for and, thérefore, are not relied on for operating expenses of the District.
Request for Informatido

This financial report is designed to grovide a general overview of the District's finances for all those with an
interest. Questions concagning ‘anyof the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to the District at 3394 #A James Lee Park Road, Carson City, NV
89705, or call 775-267-2805.



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & cash equivalents $ 3,358,919 $ 7,342,160 $ 10,701,079
Taxes receivable 68,968 - 68,968
Accounts receivable, less allowance for
doubtful accounts of $0 and $0 5,261 237,788 244,048
Other assets ;, 48,108 147,776 196,884
Total Current Assets '3,483,256 7,727,724 11,210,980
Lease receivable - 222,103 222,103
Lease assets, net of accumulated amortization 15,8441 - 15,841
Property, Plant & Equipment, net 4,424,400 13,847,973« » 18,242,373
Total Assets 7,923,497 21,767:800 29,691,297
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension requirement 248,269 . . 467,409 715,678
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows - : R
of Resources 8,171,766, 29,235,209 30,406,975
LIABILITIES Ny
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 17,385 84,796 102,191
Accrued payroll & benefits 33236 70,307 103,543
Prepaid user fees - 30,838 30,838
Accrued intergst - 19,484 19,484
Due to IRS: - 7,040 7,040
Currentgortioh lease liability 6,996 - 6,996
Current ppftion of long-term debt : - 347,584 347,584
Jotal Current Liabilities 57,627 560,049 617,676
Non-Byrreht Liabilities
Compégsafed absences 1,007 1,693 2,700
Premiuman bond issue - 99,865 99,865
Bonds payable - 2,957,653 2,957,653
Lease liability 9,379 - 9,379
Net pension liability 555,771 1,046,337 1,602,108
Total Non-Current Ljabilitigs 566,157 4,105,548 4,671,705
Total Liabilities 623,784 4,665,597 5,289,381
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources - lease - 201,146 201,146
Pension requirement 70,527 132,778 203,305
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
of Resources 694,311 4,999,521 5,693,832
NET POSITICN
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,424 400 10,412,871 14,837,271
Restricted cash 1,618,246 4,189,401 5,807 647
Unrestricted 1,434,809 2,633,416 4,068,225
Total Net Position $ 7477,455 $ 17,235,688 $ 24,713,143

See Accompanying Accountant's Audit Report & Notes to Financial Statements
8



6
SjuLIelS feioueul- 0] SejoN ¥ Uodey Npny sjuejunossy buiAuedwosoy 98s

STV AN ] 889'6eZ’LlL  $ SSY'LLY'L $ £20Z ‘0€ aunr 'uonisod 19N

9ep'S86'E2 S+9°226'91 1622502 "pajelsal se ‘ZzZ0Z ‘0F eunr 'uonIsod 18N
(00€"1LS) {00€'1G) - (01 91oN) Jusunsnipy pouad Joud

9£.'9e0'v2 S¥6'826'91 164°250'L 2202 '0g eunr ‘uolisod 19N

20L°2ZL £40°80€ y99'6LY uopisod JeN ui ebueysd

¥0v'Zes’L 64204 CIANATA enuaAey [eJaua9) |ejo ]

- LhP'EE (2¥1'ce) siajsuel; punysu)

G86'G G86'G s uolusodsip 19sse Uo ues

6€L'VE T4 Ar A" yi5'ee BaNUBAS) SNOBUE|{SISIN

5 - - aNuUaAal JUBIS)

65L'¢e 229’8l LEL'S sBuiules Jsalelu|

126'/SY'L = 126°'25%'L shusAae) xe |

SANNIATY TvH3INTD

(269'v6L) ¥9.'1€2 (Lov'zeo'L) gze'eer'e  § [eloL

$9L'LE2 ¥9L'LET - $9¥'06E'C saniapoe adA)-ssauisng |ej0 L
(65'201) (S65'Z0L) - G65'201 asuadxa }seJs)u|

6SE'0VE 65E°0vE - = 822'829'Z 698'282'C James @ Islep

A . sanAnoy adA | -sseuisng
(19+°2€0°L) . (L9t'Z80°L) U A - 19¥'Z€0'L SOIIAIOR |BjuUBLIWBAOD ()01
(601°22€) - (6oL‘Zeer - & Ny - 601'zee uoneasoal g aamnd
(628°'¥EY) - (628'vEV) - - 6L8'VEY SHHOM DIIqNndd
{eLt'sLe) s - $ dE2t'ss2) $ - $ - $  £i¥'SLZ ¢ juswwanob [eseuss)
SSNIADY |RJUSLILLIBAOL)
. ; SWVYHOO0MUJ4/SNOILONNI
el SBIIANOY SSNAIY " pegngmuo) g IER sasuadx3
adA | -ssauisng |BJUSUILIBACE). syugye) [epden oy sabieyn

S]essy 19N ul sebuey) Sanuandy welboig

pue anugasy (asuadx3) 19N

€202 '0€ aunr pepul Jes A oy} Jo4
SONIAOY JO Jualslels
1PUsI Juswaaocidw) [esauas) s||IH uelpu|



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Balance Sheet and Reconciliation of the
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023

ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 3,368,919
Taxes receivable 68,968
Accounts receivable 6,261
Other assets 49,108
Total Assets $ 3,483,256
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 17,395
Accrued payroll & benefits 15,289
Compensated absences -, . 17,947
Total Liabilities 50,631
FUND BALANCE
Assigned 1,618,246
Non-spendable 49,108
Unassigned 1,765,271
Total Fund Balance 3,432,625
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 3,483,256

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALARCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Fund Balande - General Fund $ 3,432,625

Amounts reporfed for governmental actlyitigs in the

statement of ngt pbsition are different bdcause:
Capital assiis used in governmental attivities are
not financial régourtes and, thergforg, are not

reported in the funds. 9,471,009
Less accumulated ﬂqprebiatfon {5,046,609)
Less noncurrent compepsated absences (1,007)
Right of use assets - lease 15,841
Less lease liability {16,375)
Defarrad outflows of resources - pension requirement 248,269
Less net pension liability (555,771)
Less deferred inflows of resources - pension requirement {70,527)
Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 7,477,455

See Accompanying Accountant's Audit Repart & Noles to Financial Statements
10



indian Hills General Improvement District

And Reconciliation of Statement of Revenue,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities

General Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance — Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

REVENUES

Intergovernmental revenue
Ad Valorem taxes
Consolidated tax
Grants

Miscellaneous
Interest on investments
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Salaries
Benefits
Services & supplies
Capital outlay
Total General Government
Public Works
Salaries
Benefits
Servicgs & slipplies
Capital outlay
Total Public Works
Culture & Rengeation
Salaries
Benefits
Services & supplies
Capital outlay
Total Culture & Recragtion
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of

Revenues over Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2022
Interfund Transfers

FUND BALANCE, June 30, 2023

See Accompanying Accountant’s Audit Report & Notes to Financial Statements

11

BUDGETED AMOUNTS Variance

Favorable
Qriginal Final Actual {Unfavorable)
$ 1066626 $ 4086626  $ 1,094,948 § 28,322
382,383 382,383 362,973 (19,410)
1,600 1,600 §,13% 3,537
21,700 é1.m¢g 22,514 814
1,472,309 1,472,309 1,485,572 13,263
64,706 64,706 57,692 7.014
23,450 25,550 1,014 24,536
223,550 221,450 184,729 36,721
311706 " T311,706 243435 68,271
145,250 145,250 104,583 40,667
52,100 52,100 37,312 14,788
93,175 93,175 52,728 40,447
427,060 427,000 18,779 408,221
. 717,525 717,525 213,402 504,123
137,350 137,350 98,053 39,297
78,400 78,400 48,629 29,771
148,725 148,725 136,051 12,674
24,000 24,000 1,000 23,000
388,475 388,475 283,733 104,742
1,417,706 1,417,706 740,570 677,136
$ 54603 $ 54,603 745,002 $ 690,399

2,721,070

(33.447)

3 3432625



Indian Hills General Improvement District
General Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balance — Budget and Actual
And Reconciliation of Statement of Revenue,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

RECONCILIATION OF THIS STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Net Change in Fund Balance - General Fund $ 745,002

Amount reported for governmental activities in the statement,
of activities are different because:

Interfund transfers (33,447)
Less current ROU asset amortization {7.611)
{ ess current year depreciation (293,707)
Less lease liability interest expense (628)
Add back equipment lease expense 8,248
Add back capital outlay 19,779
Add back difference between pension expense apd contributivos (19,914)
Add back change in noncurrent compensated absences 1,942
Change in Net Position of Governmental Actlyities $ 419,664

See Accompanying Accountant's Audit Report & Nofes to Financial Statements
? 5



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023

Business-Type Activities

Water Sewer
Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & cash equivalents $ 3,160,675 $4,181,485 $ 7,342,160
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of $4,885 and $3,538 140;119 97,669 237,788
Other assets A20578 27,198 147,776
Total Current Assets 3,421,372 4,306,352 7,727,724
Lease receivable €22,103 - 222,103
Property, Plant & Equipment, net 7,680,310, 6,137,663, _ 13.817.973
Total Assets 11,323,785 . 10,444,015 21,767,800
Deferred Outflows of Resources
- Pension requirement 216,206 _251,203 467,409
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows
of Resources 11.5@9.3’;1 _ 10,695,218 22,235,209
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 51,819 32,977 84,796
Accrued payroll & benefits 34,335 35,972 70,307
Prepaid user fees 17,577 13,261 30,838
Accrued interest 16,087 3,397 19,484
Due to IRS 7,040 - 7,040
Currentportion of long-term deb 236,733 110,851 347,584
Tgtéal Cutrent Liabilities 363,591 196,458 560,049
Non-Currapt Liabilities
Compengated absences 883 810 1,693
Premium onfond.issue 34,953 64,912 99,865
Note and bonds payable 1,581,805 1,375,848 2,957,653
Net pension liability 483,997 562,340 1,046,337
Total Liabilities 2,465,229 2,200,368 4,665,597
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows of resources - lease 201,146 - 201,146
Pension requirement 61,418 71,360 132,778
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
of Resources 2,727,793 2,271,728 4,999,521
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 5,826,819 4,586,052 10,412,871
Restricted cash 2,373,459 1,815,942 4,189,401
Unrestricted 611,920 2,021,496 2,633,416
Total Net Position $ 8,812,198 $ 8,423,490 $ 17,235,688

See Accompanying Accountant’s Audit Report & Notes to Financial Statements
13



Indian Hills General improvement District
Enterprise Funds

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

OPERATING REVENUE
Water & sewer user fees
Gain on disposal of assets
Connection fees
Grant income
Miscellaneous income

Total Operating Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries & wages
Employees benefits
Services & supplies
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NONOQOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Interest expense

Income {Loss) Before Capital Coptributions
and Transfers:

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Change4h Net Positon

NET POSITION, June 30, 2022
Prior pgriodhadjustment (Note 10)
NET POSITION, Jooe 30, 2022, as restated

NET POSITION, dune 90, 2023

Business-Type Activities

Water Sewer

Fund Fund Total
$ 1417332 $ 1,098,036 $ 2,515,368
5,985 - 5,985
56,480, 56,430 112,860
A12,225% - 12,225
1,491,972 1,154,466 2,646,438
258,539 239,254 497,793
130,325 115,486 245,811
452,710 187,224 639,934
531,687 372,644 904,331
1,373,261 914,608 2,287,869
£ 118711 249,858 358,569
18,457 165 18,622
(58,£295) (44,300) (102,595)
(36,898) (44,135) (83,973)
78,873 195,723 274,596
(9,721) 43,168 33,447
69,152 238,891 308,043
8,768,696 8,210,249 16,978,945
(25,650) (25,650) (51,300)
8,743,046 8,184,599 16,927,645
$ 8812198 $ 8423490 $17,235,688

See Accompanying Accountant’s Audit Report & Notes to Financial Statements

~



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Business-Type Activities

Water Sewer
Fund Fund Total
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 1518333 § 1,153882 § 2,672,215
Miscellaneous cash receipts 11,570 - 11,570
Payment of employee salaries & benefits (399,664) (331,129) (730,793)
Payment of services & supplies y (439,833) {164,245) (603,878)
Net cash provided by operating activities 690,606 . 658,508 1,349,114
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interfund transfers N (9,721) . 43,168 33,447
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital 3
financing activities , (9.721) . 43,168 33,447
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (142,879) (187,884) (330,763)
Bond amortization premium {1,456) (2,705) (4,161)
Principal paid on long-term debt {28'0,884) {110,136) (341,020)
Interest paid on long=term-debt (61,648) (44,881) {106,529)
Net cash pavided {used) by-capital and
relatedfinancing activities {436,867) (345,606) (782,473)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AGTIVITIES
Interagt received on investments 18,457 165 18,622
Net cashprovided by investing agtivilles 18,457 165 18,622
NET INCREASE (DEGREASE) IN GASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 262,475 356,235 618,710
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, June 30, 2022 2,898,200 3,825,250 6,723,450
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, June 30, 2023 $§ 3160675 $ 4,181,485 § 7,342,160

See Accompanying Accountant's Audit Report & Notes to Financial Statements

* A



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Business-Type Activities

Water Sewer
Fund Fund Total
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ 118,711 $ 239,858 § 358,569
Non-cash adjustment
Depreciation ‘531,687 372,644 904,331
Increase (decrease) in cash from changes in:
Accounts receivable 47,276 899 48,275
Other assets (8,695) (2,826) (11,521)
Accounts payable 9,977 21,916 31,893
Accrued payroll and benefits (14,720) 18,218 3,498
Prepaid user fees 2,450 2,306 4,756
Compensated absences 3,920 5,393 9,313
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 6&606 5 658,508 $ 1,349,114

See Accompanying Accountant’s Audit Report & Notes to Financial Statements

‘ /9



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Indian Hills General Improvement District (the District) is governed by an elected board of
trustees and is responsible for providing water and sewer services and maintaining the streets and
parks within its boundaries.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The accounting policies of
the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles. The following is a summary of such
significant policies:

Reporting Entity

The financial statements of the District consist only of the funds of the Disfrict.. The District has no
oversight responsibility for any other governmental entity singe nalother entitisg aré.considered to be
controlled by or dependent on the District. Control or depepdente is determined bnthé basis of
budget adoption, taxing authority, funding, and appointmentf of thg géveming board,

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The statement of net position and statement of activitieg comprise the goygrmment-wide financial
statements and report information on all the fiof-fiduciapy activitiesof the District. For the most part,
the effect of interfund activity has been.rempvegd fronf thése statemenis. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxgs and intargoverfnmental revenles, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to & significant gxtént on feds and charges for support.

The statement of activities demongtratas the degree'tp which the direct expenses of a given program
or function is offsefby pregram revagues, Direct expensesdre those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific program or function, Program réyenues include charges to customers or applicants who
purchase; uge, or directly bgnelitfrom goods, services, or privileges provided by a given program or
functioh @fd grants and contribdtions that are. restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requireprents of a particular prog.ramor functiba, Taxes and other items not properly included among
prograrrevenues are reported ipstend as general revenues.

Separatq financial statements arg provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual gpvetnmental funds antl méjor individual enterprise funds, if any, are reported as separate
columns in the furid statemens.

The government-wide finahcial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. Under this
method, revenues are racognized at the time they are earned and expenses are recognized when the
related liabilities are incurred. This basis also provides for matching of costs to the benefiting fiscal
periods by capitalizing costs to be depreciated or amortized. Grants are recognized as revenues as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

17

e,



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government-Wide and Fund Financia! Statements {(Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. This method provides for
recognizing expenditures at the time liabilities are incurred, while revenues are recorded when
measurable and available to finance expenditures of the fiscal period. An exception to this general
rule is that principal and interest on general long-term debt are fecognized as expenditures when
due. Available is defined as being due and collected within.the Eurtent patiod or within 60 days of
fiscal year end. Revenues due but received after the 60 ddy period @reyecorded as receivables and
deferred revenue since the revenue is not available.

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of furids, each af which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund Bre agcounted foritha separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities fund equity, revenue, and éxpénditures, or
expenses as appropriate. Governmental resources are allicatéd to and accountéd for j individual
funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and thémeans by which spending
activities are controlled. The District reports the f6llowing major govatnmiantal fund:

General fund: The general fund is the gehegal operating funtl.of the Distgigt. Itis used to account
for all financial resources except those fequired to be Acspunted for in other funds.

Additionally, the District reports thefollowing flund types:

Enterprise funds are used 40 'accpunt for thosg operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business or where the board hds decided that the determination of
revenue gafied, 6dsts incurred and/or net income 18 necessary for management accountability.

Private-gector standards af actounting andfinancial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally #re followed in both the government-vide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extént tHat those standards dowot éonflict with.grcontradict guidance of the Government Accounting
Standards Board. Governmens also have the option of following subsequent private-sector
guidance for their business-type ctivities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The
Districthas lected not to follow subgequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rulg; the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statemgnts:. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the water and sewer
program and other progjrams and functions of the District. Elimination of these charges would distort
the direct costs ang prograrm revenue reported for the various programs and functions concerned.
Internal balances reflacted on the statement of net assets are self balancing accounts used to
balance the major funds and indicate amounts paid by the Enterprise fund on behalf of the General
fund.

Amounts reported as program revenue include charges to customers and operating grants and
contributions. Resources dedicated by the District are reported as general revenue as are all tax
revenue.

18



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Amounts reported as program revenue include charges to customers and operating grants and
contributions. Resources dedicated by the District are reported as general revenue as are all tax
revenue.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses froim non-operating items. Operating
revenue and expenses generally result from providing serviges ahd producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing agerations. The prificipal operating revenue
of the District is the water and sewer user fees. Operatirig eXpensesinclute the cost of the salaries,
benefits paid, administration, services and supplies.

Capital Assets

Capital assets include land, buildings, machinery and equipment, which are reported jn the‘applicable
governmental or business-type activities column in the.gavernment Wide fipancial statements. Assets
purchased or acquired with an original cost of $3,000 &r more aré reported at historical costs.
Donated assets are recorded at their estimated fairmatket value on thedaté.donated. The cost of
maintenance and repairs is charged to expénse as incyrred. When capitgh assets are retired or
otherwise disposed of, the cost and relafed accumidatéd depteciation are removed from the
accounts, and any resulting gain or losg is rlacognizeg’ in,income for the. period. Depreciation on all
capital assets is provided on the strdight-line-basis 6ver the estimated useful life as follows:

L feprs
Buildings 5-30
Office-furniture § equipment 5-15
Software 3-5
Vehiclég & équipment, 5-15
Other equipmeqt 6-15
Park equipment'& improvéments 15-30
Street improvements 10
Water & sewer system 10-40

Encumbran

Encumbrance acepunting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of monlgs are recorded in order to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed as an extensipn of formal budgeting integration in the General fund. Encumbrances lapse
at the year end and are not carried over the succeeding year.

19

AN



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SGIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the governmental activities. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as
insurance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the proportionate-to-
stated-interest-requirements method.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize thg-face amount of the debt
issued as other financing sources. Premiums received n febtissusinces are reported as other
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances arg reported asotherfinancing uses. Issuance
costs are reported as current expenditures of the fund Yeceiving itie progeeds.

Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied on July 1 each year, and are due in"fourequal instalh‘qept;ﬁn August,
October, January, and March. Taxes are considered.delinquent if ngt paid within ten days of the due
dates.

The District does not directly collect any taxés, All taxes are collected by-{heé county or state and
remitted to the District. Property tax revenge is recognifzed whem'it becomes available. Available

incudes current and prior year's property taxgs épllecigd by the Bistrictor the county within sixty days
after year-end.

Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes.of the statement of éqsh flows, the District-eonsiders afl highly liquid debt instruments
with an odgfnalmaturiq of three mohths or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Co n d Absenc
The District accrues a liability fof compensated absences that meet all of the following criteria:

A. " The District's obligations relating to employee’s rights to receive compensation for future
abgentes is attributable’to gervices already rendered;

B. The obl‘gaﬁbn relatés tp'rights that vest or accumulate;
C. Payment of'compegnsation is probable; and
D. The amount can be reasonably estimated.
Vacation and sick leave may be accumulated by employees up to certain maximums and is payable

upon retirement or termination. At the statement date, District personnel had accumulated vacation
and sick pay of $66,714.

a3



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, a separate section is reported for defémrefl outflows of reésources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred outflows of resourges, fepresepts a censumption of net position
that applies to a future period and will not be fectgnized @€ an gutflow of resources
{(expense/expenditure) until then. The changes in propgrtion-and differances. between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions as well as contribufions, madg after the
measurement period for pensions qualify for reporting in fiis-category.

In addition to liabilities, a separate section is reported for defefrgd Inflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of régources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period and will ot be recognized as an inflpw bf resources (revenue)
until that time. Differences between expectéd and actual gxpérience and between projected and
actual investment eamings on pension plammtestmenjs a5 well g5 the income related to the lease
receivable, qualify for reporting in this catedory,

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for Gavernmental fund are reported in classifications
that comprisg-#@ Hilerarchy based mrimacily on how ameunfs can be spent. These include “non-
spendable™which arenot expected to.be tonverted to cash, and consist of prepaid expense items,
“restriciéd” by conditions of law; egulatiap grapts or contract with external parties, “committed” which
arisefrony acts of the Distrigt's Board, “assighed” which reflect an intent by management of the
Disfrict-6r “unassigned” whichis thi residuatamount. “Assigned” amounts are those amounts set
aside fb.cover future capital expgndilures related to replacement of fully depreciated capital assets.

The District.first utilizes restricfed resources to finance qualifying activities then unrestricted
resources, as they are needed wher amounts are available for the same use.

The District firstytilizes comsitted resources, then assigned and then unassigned when amounts are
available for the same usgé.

Net Position

In the fund and the government-wide financial statements, net position is presented in one of three
classifications. Assets invested in capital assets are net of related debt, restricted and the residual
unrestricted net assets. In the governmental environment, resources are often assigned or
committed to specific purposes, indicating that those amounts are not considered available for
general operations. In contrast to restricted amounts, these types of constraints are internal and can
be removed or modified. Therefore, assignments and commitments are not presented in the
statements of net position.

21

Y



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada (PERS) and additions to/deductions
from PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refundg of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the bepefitterins. Ipvestments are reported at
fair value.

NOTE 2 — BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The District adheres to the Local Government Budget Act incorpdrated wWithin the statytes of thé State of
Nevada, which includes the following major procedures to establish tha budgetary data reflected in these
financial statements:

1.

5.

On or before April 15, the District's Boarg of Trustegs files tentativg budget with the Nevada
Department of Taxation for all funds.

Prior to June 1, at a public hearing, the bpard jfidicates ghanges, if any, to be made to the
tentative budget and adopts a ﬁhaﬂudgef by tie favorable vote-of majority of the members of
the Board. The final budget ig then forwarded tothe Nevadd Tax Commission to approve the
requested Ad Valorem tax.fate.

. Formal budgetary'inlq%;a(tion‘in the financial records is employed to enhance management

control‘during the year for all furids.
Budgefs for funds are adopted on a pasig consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). Appropriafions lapsé.atyear end.

Budgeted amounts within fupds| and between funds, may be transferred if amounts do not
exbged the amounts originally budgeted. Such transfers are to be approved by the Budget
Officer and/or the Board /of Trustees, depending on the established criteria. Budget
augmentations in excess gf original budgetary amounts may be made only with prior approval of
the Districtg Board of Ffusiees, following a scheduled and noticed public hearing.

In accordance with state stajutes, actual expenditures may not exceed budgetary appropriations of the
various functions of the Genétdl fund, or total appropriations of the Enterprise fund, except for bond
repayments, short-term financing repayment and any other long-term contract expressly authorized by law or
payments for the construction of public works from funds provided by the proceeds of a sale of bonds or
short-term financing.

22



Indian Hills General Improvement District

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The District invests cash in either the state governmental deposit pool, which holds securities callateralizing
deposits, or with a commercial bank, which also collateralizes all state government deposits.

The State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool is recorded at cost, which approximates fair value
and is available to be withdrawn by the District on demand. The Pool is administered by the State Treasurer,
with oversight by the State of Nevada Board of Finance. State statutes require the State Treasurer to
collateralize the deposits made to it with other securities. The State of Neyada investment pool is an unrated
external investment pool that does not provide information on realized br Onrealized gain or loss activity.
Accordingly, changes in the investment pool are reflected as netfnvistment iticame in the accompanying
financial statements. The District reports its investments at fair valug, which jotal $395,489 at June 30, 2023.

By provision of statutes, the District is authorized to deposit gll rhofiey in banks br savings and loan
associations located in the State of Nevada and must be subject ta withdrawal on demand.

Restricted cash in the Business-Type Activities consists of the followings

Water Seéwer
d Fund, Total
Reserved from connection fees $ 3%9,513' $ 288993 $ 598,506
Reserved for depreciation 137,380 207,547 344,927
Reserved for water tank 29,030, 5 29,030
Restricted bond funds 380,617 5,872 395,489
Reserved for rate increase 1,332,994 1,258,957 2,589,951
Reserved for construction 16,348 - 16,348
Rural Development debt-seryice resefves 40,284 56,573 96,857
AB-198 capital resérve 118,293 - 118,293
Total Resfrictéd Cash $ 2,373,459 $1,815,942 $ 4,189,401
NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS
Depreciation expenge id.charged to funétiogis as follows:
Balance Additions or Deletions or Balance
June 30, 2022 Transfers in  Transfers out  June 30, 2023
Government Activities Cne
Lease assets, office equipment $ 28,417 $ 10,515 $ - $ 38,932
Less accumulated amortization {15,480) (7,611) (23,091)
Total right-to-use assets $ 12,937 § 2904 § - % 15,841

23

Lp



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Capital assets activity during 2023 was as follows:

Balance Additions or Deletions or Balance
June 30, 2022 Transfers in Transfers out  June 30, 2023
Government Aclivities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Construction in process $ 65386 $§ 19778 § - 8 85,165
Land 236,479 236,479
Open space improvements 11,974 11,974
Trailheads & trails 110,833 B - 9 : 110,833
Total non-depreciable assets 424,672 18779 - 444 451
Capital assets, being depreciated : b
Buildings 722,343 722,343
Office furniture & equipment 26,578 26,578
Software 16,900 16,900
Vehicles & equipment 194541 194,541
Other equipment 315,099 315,039
Park equipment & improvements 1,414,768 1,114,768
Street improvements 6,636,387 v 3 6,636,387
Total depreciable assets . 9,028,556 &8 = 9,026,556
Total capital assets 9,451,228 jﬁ?Q 2 9,471,007
Less accumulated depreciation (4.752,90Q) {298,707) {5,046,607)
Govermnmental actjvities = ' '
capital assets, sfet g 4.698,328 $ (273928) § - $ 4424400
Balance Additions or  Deletions or Balance
. June 30,2022 Transfersin  Transfersout  June 30, 2023
Business*type Activities i
Capital asséts, not.being depreciated
Construction i pracess 3 174707 $§ 229987 $ (333383) $ 71,311
Capital assets, beigg depreciated y
Water & sewer system 32,289,414 32,289,414
Buildings 337,251 337,251
Office furniture & equipment 28,846 28,846
Software 47,570 47,570
Vehicles & equipment 763,799 434,158 (17,400) 1,180,557
Other system improvements 849,311 849,311
Total depreciable assets 34,316,191 434,158 (17,400) 34,732,949
Total capital assets 34,490,898 664,145 {350,783) 34,804,260
Less accumulated depreciation {20,099,356) (904,331) 17,400 (20,986,287)
Business-type activities -
capital assets, net $ 14,391,542 $ (240,186) § (333,383) $ 13,817,973
24

a7



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 5 — LEASE TRANSACTIONS

During the current fiscal year, the District entered into a five year lease agreement, commencing July 21,
2022, for the use of a folding machine for $190 per month. The District entered into a five year lease
agreement, commencing February 6, 2022, for the use of a copy system for $342 per month. The lease also
provides for sales tax and per copy charges which vary according to usage in addition to the monthly fee.
The District also entered into a lease agreement for the use of a postage meter commencing January 7, 2021,
for a quarterly fee of $576. With the adoption of GASBS 87, the District has recorded lease liabilities and
related right-to-use assets for the remaining terms of the lease.

Expense recorded under these leases for the year ended June 30, 2023, gonsfsted of interest expense of
$628 and amortization expense of $7,611. The lease assets cgnsigl of the following as of June 30, 2023

Balance Additigns-or  DQelétions or Balance
June 30, 2022 Tmansfers in__Transferg out . June 30, 2023
Government Activities g %
Lease assets, office equipment $ 28417 $ 10515, % > § 38,932
Less accumulated amortization (15,480) (7610, (23,091)

Total right-to-use assets $ g?,ﬁ? § 2904 § - $ 15,841

Minimum future lease payments under the ndn-tandetsble Jéases are racpirod as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal . Interas} Total
2024 $ 65,996 $ 410 $ 7,406
2025 4,796 400 5,196
2026 2162 113 2,275
2027 2,232 43 2,275
2028 189 1 190
2028 and Later - - -

é 16,375 § 967 § 17,342

Lease liability activity 15 as follows:
Palance Additions Balance Due within
~ June 30, 2022 {(Reductions)  June 30, 2023 One year

GOVERNMENT ACTIVITIES

Lease liability $ 13,481 $ 2,894 $ 16375 $ 6,996

25



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 5 — LEASE TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The District also derives revenue from rents received for a cell tower on District property. Under an
agreement with Verizon rents received this year totaled $12,442. The current five-year term is from April 27,
2020 and ends in 2025, with the opfion for extensions every five years through 2040, cancelable by the tenant
at the end of the term. Annual rent increases 20% with each extension. As the tenant is reasonably certain
to exercise the option to extend, the lease receivable and related deferred inflow of resources reflect the
extended terms. Income recorded for the year ended June 30, 2023, under this lease consisted of interest
income of $7,132, and miscellaneous income of $11,949.

Future rents to be received on the lease receivable are as follows!

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total.

2024 $ 5480 § 6,962 $ 12,442
2025 6,072 8,785 12,857
2026 8,376 6,553 14,929
2027 8,646 6,284 14,930
2028 8,924 6,006 ¥4,930
2029-2033 59,047 25,058, B4,105
2034-2038 87,316 13,610 100,926
2039 and Later 88242 1,172, 39,414

2=22 103 72 42 $ 294,533

Deferred inflows are recogrized on a strai ht—rne basis overthe entige anticipated lease tern. Activity in the
lease receivable and deferred inflows relating to-ihe lease are as Tollows:

Balance Net Balance

June f}g‘ 2%2 Change June 30, 2023

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

l'gasé eceivable J 227412 $ 5309y $ 222103

Deferrad inflows - lease, $ (213095 $ 11,949 $ (201,146)

26

oy



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds Payable

During the year ended June 30, 2004, the District issued a water revenue bond, series 2003, in the
principal amount of $1,700,000. The bond was issued for the purpose of enhancement of the water
treatment plant of the District's public water system. Principal and interest, with a rate of 3.46%, is
payable semi-annually on July 1 and January 1. The bond will mature in full on January 1, 2026.
Remaining principal balance due on this bond payable at June 30, 2023, was $334,763.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the District issdeda general©bligation (limited tax) water
and sewer bond (additionally secured by pledged water fevenue)}, sertgs 2010, in the principal
amount of $1,105,630 all of which had been disbursed tp the District g5 af June 30, 2017. The bond
was issued for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, reconstedctisg, improving, and extending the
District's water system. Principal and interest, with a raté.of 2.57%, is payable’semi-annually on
January 1, and July 1. The bond will mature in full on July 4, 2030. ‘interest paidqnd"mdruad on this
debt totaling $25,628 was capitalized as part of the water sy5tem Impréwements. Remainirg principal
balance due on this bond payable at June 30, 2023 wag $547,215.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Distric ohtaihed a term Yaan from the United States
Department of Agriculture, in the amount of 800,000. The loap was obtajped for the purpose of
acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, iniproving, arid .-&:-Etend’{‘nq the District's water system.
Principal and interest with a rate of 3.25% ig payablearithly. Loan Wil mature in full on August 1,
2051. Remaining principal balancg<@ue'on this nojé payable af Jline'30, 2023 was $742,308.

During the fiscal year ended Juﬁéﬁoq 2014, the District obtairied'a term loan from the United States
Department of Agriculture, in thg amount of $1,382,000 for the purpose of replacing the interim
financing and.complefing the Distrist's sbwer system improvéments. Principal and interest with a rate
of 2.75% jg‘payable-monthiy.. The loan wilk mature in full June 18, 2053. Interest paid and accrued
on this débt jotaling $18,209 w&gcapitaﬁzed‘:s part of the sewer system improvements. Remaining
pringipal dle on this note payablé at June-30, 2023 was $1,125,950.

Duringthe fiscal year ended Junk 30} 2012, the District issued a general obligation (limited tax) water
bond{additionally secured by plefigeti revenue), series 2012, in the principal amount of $1,710,000.
The bond was issued for the purpoge of refunding the series 2007 bonds issued during the year
ended Juhg 30;.2007. The refuptling redeemed the remaining balance of 2007 bonds in the amount
of $1,790,00Q resulting in a prémiyim on issue recognized in the amount of $157,647, The principal
amount allocated to'and sgtured by sewer revenues is $1,111,500, with the remaining $598,500
allocated to and ‘secured by ‘Wwater revenues. The premium on the issue is likewise allocated
$102,471 to sewer uperations and $55,176 to water operations. Principal and interest, with a
variable interest rate, i5 payable semi-annually on November 1, and May 1. The bond will mature in
full on November 1, 2026. Remaining principal balance on this bond payable at June 30, 2023 was
$555,000.

As of June 30, 2023, the District held $395,489 in three separate state investment pool accounts and
$3,448,985 in three separate bank accounts that were restricted for use in accordance with the bond
and locan agreements.

27



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the

bonds at June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
Water Fund
2024 $ 236,733 § 55,038 $ 291,771
2025 244 519 47147 291,666
2026 252,500 38,991 291,49
2027 142,966 31,554 174,520
2028 92,935 28035 120,970
2029-2033 297,188 105,947 403,135
2034-2038 121,173 ¥3,887 201,060,
2039 and Later 430,524 W 15 529,639
1,818,538 486,718, 2,304,252
Sewer Fund g k

2024 116,921 43,368 154,289
2025 114,807 39,187 154,094
2026 118,913 34,856 153,769
2027 126,190 30,309 156,499
2028 29,484 127,560 57,049
2029-2033 160,232 126,013 285,245
2034-2038 183,821 101,423 285,244
2039.and Later g 642,226 124,956 767,182
. 1,486,699 526,672 2,013,371

Total Enterprise Fund $ 3,(2;0@_237

$ 1,012,386 $ 4,317,623

Changes:in Long-term Liabilities)

During the yedr.ended June 30,2028, the foliowing changes in liabilities reported in long-term debt:

Balance Additions Balance Due within
June 30, 2022 (Reductions)  June 30, 2023 One year
GOVERNMENT ACTJVIFIES

Lease liability $ 13481 § 2894 % 16375 $ 6,99
Compensated absences 15,838 3,116 18,954 17,947
3 29319  §$ 6,010 3 35,329 $ 24,943

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Compensatied absences $ 38,447 $ 9,314 $ 47,761 $ 46,068
Premium on bond issue 104,026 (4,161) 99,865 -
Bonds and notes payable 3,646,258 (341,020) 3,305,238 347,584
$ 3,788,731 $ (335,867) $ 3,452,864 $ 393,652

28

3



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOCTE 7 — PENSION PLAN

General Information About the Pension Plan
Plan Description

The Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada (PERS or the System) administers a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employees’ retirement system which includes
both Regular and Police/Fire members. The system was established by the Nevada Legislature in
1947, effective July 1, 1948. The system is administered to prgvide a reasonable base income to
qualified employees who have been employed by a public gmployerand whose earnings capacities
have been removed or substantially impaired by age qr digabillty.

Benefits Provided

Benefits, as required by the Nevada Revised Statutes [NRS or statute), ‘are determiped by the
number of years of accredited service at time of retireghept anth the membeér's highestaverage
compensation in any 36 consecutive months with speclal prayisibos for members gnitering the
System on or after January 1, 2010 and July 1, 2015. Benefit paymants to which participants or
their beneficiaries may be entitled under the plafl includerpension bagefits, disability benefits, and
survivor benefits.

Manthly benefit allowances for members dre ¢omputed ag 2:§% of average compensation for each
accredited year or service prior to July 1, 2001. For'sefvice earnedop and after July 1, 2001, this
multiplier is 2.67% of average cdmpinsation. For ‘members Bntéring the System on or after
January 1, 2010, there is a 2.5% Senvice time faclor and for regilar members entering the System
on or after July 1, 2015, theré'is a 2.25% factol. The sysfemn offers several alternatives to the
unmodified service retirementgllowance which, ingeneral, allow the retired employee to accept a
reduced serviCe retirement allowante payable monthly during his or her lifetime and various
optiona) fmonthly paymenis to a naméd beneficiary after his or her death. Post retirement
increases dre provided fy authority of NRS, 283.575 - .579.

Mestirg

quulah{nembers entering theSystem prior to January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age
65 with five years of service, af age 60 with 10 years of service, or at any age with thirty years of
service.. Rebular members ghtering the System on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for
retirementat age 65 with fiyé yedrs of service, or age 62 with 10 years of service, or any age with
thinty years of service. Régular members who entered the System on or after July 1, 2015, are

eligible for retiremental age'65 with 5 years of service, or at age 62 with 10 years of service, or at
age 55 with thirty ygars pf service, or at any age with 33 1/3 years of service.

The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefits allowances is 75% of average compensation.
However, a member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a
benefit of up to 90% of average compensation. Both Regular and Police/Fire members become
fully vested as to benefits upon completion of five years of service.

28



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN {(CONTINUED)

Contributions

The authority for éstablishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member
contribution rates, is set by statute. New hires, in agencies which did not elect the Employer-Pay
Contribution (EPC) plan prior to July 1, 1983, have the option of selecting one of two contribution
plans. Contributions are shared equally by employer and employee. Employees can take a
reduced salary and have contributions made by the employer (EFC) or can make contributions by
a payroll deduction matched by the employer.

The System'’s basic funding policy provides for periodjc contributiohs at & level pattern of costas a
percentage of salary throughout an employee’s working lifetime n.drder fo. accumulate sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due.

The System receives an actuarial valuation on an annifal basig:indicating the contribulion rates
required to fund the System on an actuarial reserve basis. ‘Gonh-itgutions actually pade are in
accordance with the required rates established by the Nevada Lagislature. These statutory rates
are increased/decreased pursuant to NRS 286421 and286.450.

The actuarial funding method used is the Entry Age Ngrmal Bost Method, 1t is intended to meet
the funding objective and result in a relatively level lang<termcontributions requirement as a
percentage of salary.

For the fiscal years ended June 30; 2022 the Statutory Emplgyer/employee matching rate was
15.5% for Regular and 22.75%:for Police/Fire. | Th&. Empléygr-pay contribution (EPC) rate was
29.75% for Regular and 44.00% fot Police/Fire.

At Jurfe 30, 2023, the Districtyepdyted a liability of $1,602,108 for its proportionate share of the net
fensian liability. The net penslen liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension
liahjlity ised to calculate the nét pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
that tate. The District's proporfion bf the net pension liability was based on total contributions due
on wages paid during the measupement period. Each employer's proportion of the net pension
liability is gaseéd on their gbmbined employer and member contributions relative to the total
combined employer and shember contributions for all employers for the period ended June 30,
2022. AtJune 80, 2022, the District's proportion was 0.00887%.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $214,739. Amounts
totaling $109,422, resulting from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023, For the year
ended June 30, 2023, the District contributed $188,447 under the statutory requirements based
upon covered payroll of $767,904 which equates to 24.54% overall to the plan.

30

33



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Quiflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related fo Pensions {Continued)

At June 30, 2023, the District reported deferred cutflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pension from the following sources:

Defafred ‘Deferred
Oufflows of Inflows of
Eespurces y Resources

Differences between expected and actual

experience $ 207447 S 1,145
Net difference between projected and actual

eamings on pension plan investments 19,547 -
Change in assumptions 205,802 -

Changes in proportion and differences
between District contributions and

proportionate share of contributions 173,460 202,160
District contributions subsequent i the
measurement date 109 Ag& -
Total $. 745878 $ 203,305
T

Amoupnfs rgported asdeferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pengfons, without regard tq the sontributipns subsequent to the measurement date, are expected to
be regdgnized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending June 30

2024 $ 66,188
2025 62,817
2026 56,085
2027 217,007
2028 29,301

2029 and later

$ 431,398

The net difference between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments
will be recognized over five years, all the other above deferred outflows and deferred inflows will be
recognized over the average expected remaining service lives, which was 5.70 years for the
measurement period ending June 30, 2022,

31

3



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Pansion Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The System’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by aniactuarial valuation as of that date.
The total pension liability was determined using the following attuaiial assumptions, applied to all
periods included in the measurement:

Inflation rate 2.50%

Investment rate of return 7.25%

Productivity pay increase 0.50%.

Projected salary increases Regulap 4.20%.to 9.10%, depending on
service
Rates include inflatibn and productivity
increases

Consumer price index 2.50%

Other assumptions Sapfie A5 those used in the June 30, 2021
fuhding actuarialvaluation

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuatiofi were based on the results of the
experience study for the periéd.July 1, 2016 thrpugh June‘3¢, 2020. The discount rate used to
measure the total pension liabjlity was 7.25% as 'of June 30, 2022, The projection of cash flows
used to deterfiine fhigrdiscount rate agsumed plan cohtribafions will be made in amounts consistent
with statfitory provisions and redaqni' ing the plan's current funding policy and cost-sharing
mechinisrr{getween employérs and memBers. For this purpose, all contributions that are intended
to fand Benefits for all plan, members ahg thiair beneficiaries are included, except that projected
gbntributions that are intended 1o fund the Service costs for future plan members and their
tieneficiaries are not included, Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net
pasitioriwas projected to be availabile to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan
members. . Therefore, the lond-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied4p all-periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of
June 30, 2022.

Investment Pﬁlgg

The System's policleg which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are
established by the Retirement Board. The asset allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to
meet the future risk and return needs of the System. As of June 30, 2022, PERS's long-term
inflation assumption was 2.50%.

32



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

The following was the Retirement Board’s adopted policy target asset allocation as of June 30,

2022:
Target Long-Term Geometric
Asset Class Allocation Expected Real Rate of Return
Domestic Equity 42% 5.50%
International Equity 18% 5.50%
Domestic Fixed Income 28% 0475%
Private Markets 12% 6.85%

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pehsion Liabm Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the niaf pension liability ofthe PERS as
of June 30, 2022, calculated using the discountrate of 7.25%, as well a5, what the District's share
of the net pension liability would be if it were palcplated ushg a discolnt rdte that is 1 percentage-
point lower (6.25%) or 1 percentage-point Higher (8.25%} than the currapt discount rate:

1% Becredse 1% Increase

Ifi Discbunt Discgunt Rate In Discount
Rate (6.25%) > {.? .25%) Rate (8.25%)
Net Pension Liability $ 2,4@,750 _3;_‘ 1'602’103. __§ 894,417

Pensjdn Pldn Fiducia t ition

Addifional information supparting the Schedule of Employer Allocations and the Schedule of
Pension Amounts by Employér is Jocated in the PERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR):available on the PERS website at www.nvpers.org under Quick Links — Publications.

NOTE 8 — OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The employees.of the District arg’covered by the Public Employees Benefits Program of the State of
Nevada (PEBP) a multiple emiployer, self insurance trust fund. PEBP provides health insurance
benefits for current@nd retired employees of the State of Nevada and other public employers.
Chapter 287 of the Neyada Revised Statutes established the benefit provisions provided to the
participants of PEBP. These benefit provisions may only be amended through legislation. The
Nevada Public Employees Benefits Program issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for PEBP. That report may be obtained
by writing to the Nevada Public Employees Benefits Program, 901 South Stewart Street, Suite 1001,
Carson City, Nevada 89701, or by calling (775) 684-7000.

The District only participates in the retirement benefits portion of the plan which provides for health
insurance for retired employees. Retirement benefit costs are billed to the employer as they occur.
Currently, the District has one retired employee that falls under the retirement benefit provisions.
There were no amounts paid under this provision for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2023, June 30,
2022, and June 30, 2021.

33



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2023

NOTE 9 - EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

The NRS require that governmental fund budgetary controls be exercised at the function level. For
the year ended June 30, 2023, total expenditures exceeded appropriations for the following funds
and/or functions, which are potential violations of the NRS:

Capital outtay, enterprise fund, operating expense function $ 33,107

While there was a budget overage in the area of capital outlay in'the enterprise fund, the overage
was covered with reserve funds set aside for infrastructurg anfl asset fépairs, maintenance and
replacements.

NOTE 10 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2022, it was detarmined that a recejvable acprued in the
amount of $51,300 represented a duplicate recording of épnragtioh.fee income. As lhé income had
been received prior to year-end, the accrual was unnecessary. .As a result; .a prior period
adjustment has been recorded in the current fiscal.year.. The adjusiment resulted in beginning net
assets for the Enterprise Fund to be reduced by $51,300. The restatément is reflected in the
statement of net position and the statement &f acfivities,

34



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY |

Q&

38



Indian Hills General improvement District
Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position — Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

BUDGETED AMOUNTS Variance
Favorable
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable)
OPERATING REVENUE
Water & sewer user fees $ 2,333,000 $ 2,333,000 $ 2,515,368 $ 182,368
Gain on disposal of assets - - 5,985 5,985
Grant income - - - -
Miscellaneous income 12,442 42 442 12,225 (217)
Connection fees 164,160 4 164,160 , . 112,860 {51,300)
Total Operating Revenue 2,509,602 2,509,602' 2,646,438 136,836
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries & wages 562,114 662,114 497,793 64,321
Employee benefits 220,500 220,500 204,364 16,136
Services & supplies 672,800 663,200 639,934 23,266
Capital outlay 132,000 141,600 174,707 (33,107)
Depreciation 929,060 928,000 . 904,332 24,668
Total Operating Expenses 2,516&15 2,516,414 2:421,130 95,284
Operating Income (6,812) (6,812) 225,308 232,120
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest income 2,025 2,025 18,622 16,597
Interest expense 110,240 {110,240} {102,595) 7,645
‘[1"@:2151 {108,215) (83,973) 24,242
Excess (Deficlengy) before Capital T
Contribytions-and Transfers (115.027) {115,027) 141,335 256,362
INTERFUND TRANSFERS ] - - 33,447 33,447
Change in Nel:Position i (115,027) $ (115,027) 174,782 $ 289,809
RECONCILIATION T8 STATEMENT QF ACTIVITIES:
Add back capital oytlay® 174,707
Less difference betwagn perision expense and contributions (41,446)
Change in Net position of Enterprise Fund $ 308,043
36

31



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY
Nevada State Public Employees’ Retirement System

District's
proportionate
share of the
het pension
liabllity {8&set)  Plan fiduciary
District's District's asd net position as
proportion of proportionate Distrigt's pefcentage of a percentage
the net share of the coverad lts covered- of the total
Year Ended pension net pension employeg employeg pension
June 30 liability (asset) liabiity (asset) payroll _payroll {iahility
2014 0.01011% $§ 1,053,893 $ 577813 182.39% 76.31%
2015 0.01013% §$ 1,160,372 $ . 582,74 198:11% 75.13%
2016 0.00923% $ 1,241,485 $ 546,565 22714% 72.23%
2017 0.00938% $ 1,247,834 @ § 578,405 218.76% 74.42%
2018 0.01189% $ 1,621,168 " & 743,598 218.60% 75.24%
2019 0.00840% $ 13,145,083 $ | 546,745 209.44% 76.46%
2020 0.00783% $ 4,090,075 $ 931,474 205.13% 77.04%
2021 0.00795% % 726325 $ 561,231 129.24% 86.51%
2022 0.00887%  $ 11,602,108 .$ 609,795 262.73% 75.12%

37



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Schedules of Required Supplementary information

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS
Nevada State Public Employees’ Retirement System

Contributions Contributions

in Relation to as a % of

Actuarially the Actuarially Contribution Covered- Covered
Year Ended Determined Determined Deficiency Employee Employee
June 30 Contributions Contributions {Excess), Fayﬂi!i,- Payroll
2014 $ 152,535 $ 142,046 $ 10488 § . 577813 24.58%
2015 $ 151,925 $ 145533 § 6,392, § 582,794 24.97%
2016 % 82017 § 78,432 $ 3585 § 546,585 14.35%
2017 % 85610 § 84,584 $ 1,026 ' $ . 570405 14.83%
2018 & 11,727  $ 110,609 $ 1,418 $ 721,598 14.91%
2019 % 82470 § 81,104 & 1,366 $ S4B, 745 14.83%
2020 $ 84637 § 81,562 3 30760 % 531,414 15.35%
2021 % 89140 § 83,629 $ 5,611 $ 561,23 14.90%
2022 % 98980 87,925 $ 1,055 $ 608,795 16.06%
38






Indian Hills General Improvement District

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

GENERAIL. GOVERNMENT
Board of trustees
Equipment rental
Fuel expense
Insurance
Office expense
Other expenses
Payroll taxes and benefits
Professional fees
Repairs and maintenance
Safety program
Salaries and wages
Telephone
Travel and training
Utilities
Capital outlay

Total General Government

PUBLIC WORKS
Board of trustees
Fuel expense
Insurance
Other#xpenses.
Payrall isixes and bengfits
Frofgssional fees
Repairs and maintenance
Salety program
Salariss and wages
Telaghone
Utilities
Capital obtjay
Total Puhlic Works

(Page 1 of 2)

40

7,500
7,632
321
14,787
34,057
5,960
1,014
92,047

57,692
15,636
964
5,925

243,435

3,750
3,579
15,840
1,966
37,312

(2,624)
22,628
917
104,583
1,124
5,548
18,779

213,402




indian Hills General Improvement District
General Fund
Schedule of Expenditures
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

(Page 2 of 2)
CULTURE AND RECREATION

Board of trustees 3,750
Equipment Rental :
Fuel expense 2,958
Insurance 16,839
Other expenses 1,459
Recreation expense 5,829
Payroll taxes and benefits 48,629
Professional fees 125
Repairs and maintenance 28,785
Safety program 1,228
Salaries and wages 98,053
Contracted labor -
Telephone 1,070
Travel and training 220
Utilities 64,778
Capital outlay . : 1,000

Total Culture and Recreation i 283,733

Total Expenditures ‘$ 740,570

41



Indian Hills General Improvement District
Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Services and Supplies
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

SERVICE AND SUPPLIES
Bad debt recovery
Board of trustees fees
Fuel expense
Garbage expense
Insurance
Lab Fees
Office expense
Other expense
Professional fees
Permit fees
Repairs and maintenance
Safety program
Telephone
Travel and training
Treatment chemicals
Utilities
Woater Costs

Total Service and Supplies

Business-Type Activities

Water Sewer

5,154 3,888 9,042
7,500 7,500 15,000
6,736 5,924 12,660

s 41,230 11,230

16,840 16,893 33,733
6,319 8,363 14,682
3,284 3,278 6,562
5,763 6,417 12,180
37,404 14,280 51,684
4,874 4,651 4,526
38,182 25278 63460
2,167 602 2,769
14,440 3297 14,737
4,668 1,948 3,616
8,926 14,164 23,000
77,504 £9,511 137,015
8, Ny - 218,949
] '452,%1%: $ :36?",224 $ 639,934

42

s



REPORTS ON INTERNAL

Q&

ROL



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPCRTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of the
Indian Hills General Improvement District

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govetament Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statementd of the g&ammental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Indian Hills
General Improvement District as of and for the year ended Jiine 30, 2028, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Indian Hills\Gepéral Improvament District's basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated Dacerber11, 2023,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statemeats, we cbpsidered Indian Hills General
Improvement District's internal control over financial séporting (internal coffol)'tp determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances faf the purpose obexpressingan gpinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an&pjhion on tHe affectiveness oftHe Indian Hills General
Improvement District’s internal control. Accordingly, wado not gkpress-an opipion on the effectiveness of the
District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists whep the design or opératjon of a gbnfrol does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of pefformihg their assigned-functiong, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely hasis. A matagal weakness is a deficiensy, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such ilfat there is a-reasonable pbssibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will npf be prevented or tetected and borrected in a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a€ombination of defigiencies, in interndl.control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important'enpugh to merit attentiop by:those chgrged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all defigiericies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
material weaknegsesar significant deficiencigs. Given these limitations we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we éonsider to be materfal weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

U7



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Indian Hills General Improvement District's
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the detérmination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matter that is
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of iriternal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effeclivendgs of the &ptity’s internal control or
on compliance. This reportis an integral part of an audit performed in.d@ccordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accord‘mgly.'this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Carson City, Nevada
December 11, 2023

g



g



To the Board of Trustees of the
Indian Hills General Improvement District

We have audited the basic financial statements of the indian Hills General Improvement District for the year
ended June 30, 2023, and have issued our report thereon dated December 11, 2023. Professional standards
require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under U. S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated April 8, 2019, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements d?’epared by management with your
oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects in conformity with U\ S. yenefally accepted accounting
principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you oFmanagemerit of your responsibilities.

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Finangial Statements

Qur responsibility for the other information in the Management's Distussibn and Analysjs which ceptains the
District's financial information and report does not extend beyond the&vinancial informatign identified in the
audit report. We do not have an obligation to perform any procedures. to torroborate any of the other
information contained in the Management's Discussion and.Analysis. We dif, however, read the information
contained therein. As a result, nothing came to our attentibn that catized us to beliete that such information,
or its manner of presentation, is materially inconsisterit with the ipformation, or manner of its presentation
appearing in the financial statements.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selegtion and use of approprigte accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the indian Hills Geperal Improvement District are described in the financial
statements. We noted pe'transactions enteredipto by the governmental unit during the year for which there is
a lack of authdritative guidance ar consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been
recognized jif the-financial statements, in & differentperiod than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting@stifates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on managemapt's kpowledge and experignce about past and current events and assumptions about future
events. Certain agcobnting estimates are paglicularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and betausé.of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those
expected. The most sapsitive estimatgaffgcting the financial statement was management's determination that
all accounts receivable 90 days o)d or léss are collectible at year end. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develap the‘estimate of collectability in determining what is reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as'@ whole,

50



Difflculties Encountered In Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements. The following material misstatements detected as a
result of audit procedures were corrected by management:

1. Record adjustments necessary to comply with GASB 68 decreasing net income by $26,447.
2. Record adjustments to accounts receivable and related allowanc& accounts decreasing net income
by $24,637.

The total net income effect of all adjustments proposed and recbrdgd by mahagerhent was to decrease net
income by $47,415.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with, managemént.as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not reselved to our satisfactibn, that could be significant
to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We arefleased toreport that np slieh disagreements arose
during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representatighs from fmanagement that afe fhcluded in the management
representation letter dated December 14, 2023.

Management Consultations with Other Indbpendent Actountants

In some cases, ruﬂgr;argmﬂﬁnﬂnqy décide to cqnsillf with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar{o abfaining a "secand opinion" on ceftain situations. If a consultation involves application of
an accounting principle to the govefnmental unit's financial statements or a determination of the type of
auditor's gpinion that may be expressed gn those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting 'gccotiptant to check with us 1o détermine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there Were no such consuitationg with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings bt Issues

We generally discuss dyariety of shatiers, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with managemeant each year prior to retention as the governmental unit's auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the hgrmal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition of our retention.

As required by generally accepted auditing standards and the terms of our engagement, in planning and
performing our audit, we considered the internal control sclely to determine the auditing procedures to be
employed for the purpose of enabling us to express our opinion on the financial statements and not to for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting.
Therefore, we express no opinion or other form of assurance thereon.

5/



A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important encugh to merit attention by those charged with governance. Our report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards dated November 28, 2023, noted no
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.

it should be noted, however, that the excess expenditures over appropriations detailed in Note 9 represent
potential violations of the Nevada Revised Statutes. Management shguid take care to monitor budgets
closely and request budget changes andfor augmentation from thesappropriate uthorities at the State to
avoid budget overruns in the future.

This information is intended solely for the use of management dpd the Distdet and is hot intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Carson City, Nevada
December 11, 2023

53



AGENDA ITEM 6a.

Reports to the Board:
a. General Manager Report
1. Administrative

2. Water
3. Wastewater

53



General Manager Report December 20, 2023

We are completely in winter mode now. The parks are completely winterized, and the crew has
been crack sealing throughout the district. Steve has provided me with a comprehensive
maintenance plan for the parks and streets, and we are moving forward with maintenance.

| will be basing my monthly manager reports on the objectives and goals set by the board.

In regard to the training and development, we continue to do training to ensure that our staff is
capable across the board. Brooke is now an alumna of Leadership Douglas County Class of
2023. That is a very valuable class that teaches participants about ALL aspects of the Douglas
County community. They do leadership training, and visit agencies across varying from
manufacturing, county courts, local businesses, up to the state legislature and government.

Stacie will be attending grant writing training to give us an added benefit in the grant process.
We are researching grant writing classes & training and will be sending her as soon as we can
identify good training opportunities.

| am working on a Strategic Plan for the district. The process will begin with a Capital
Improvement Plan for roads, water, and wastewater infrastructure. This plan will also give a
financial outlook into the reserves over that timeframe.

We conducted our annual fire extinguisher training on the 14™. The staff participates in training
on how to identify the situation, assess the situation, and use a fire extinguisher if appropriate.
We then use the fire extinguishers that are about to be serviced and train on extinguishing a
gas fire in the maintenance yard. Everybody successfully extinguished the fire using an
extinguisher.

The speed sign on South Sunridge has provided some very valuable information. | provided
these details to DCSO and they put speed enforcement in place during some key times. They
conducted a very large number of traffic stops and issued a number of citations. The data
shows that there is a decline in the number of speeders. | will keep working with DCSO to
reduce the speeding in the district.

We have had many compliments on the Christmas lights and decorations.



Administrative Report December 2023

The ACH program continues to be well received. Residents are thankful the district has
implemented this option for payments. We currently have 557, 27.574% of residents taking
advantage of automatic withdrawal. We continue to receive requests and new authorization
forms daily.

In November we sent out thirty-seven past-due bills resulting in one disconnection, that
account paid in full, and service was restored.

The district’s Gazebo reservations are done for the season. We had nine tennis court
reservations in November.

We had four new account sign ups in November. These are homes that have changed
ownership.

I am excited to announce that | am a graduate of Leadership Douglas County after completing
the yearlong LDC program. It was an honor to be a part of this wonderful program. After
growing up and residing in Douglas County my entire life | still learned so much about the
County. Leadership Douglas County is a community leadership program designed to develop
informed, involved, and knowledgeable community members for Douglas County. The program
creates community leaders from all walks of life through academic training and by focusing on
our community’s leadership needs, history, values, members, strengths, and issues. Leadership
Douglas County is an opportunity to participate in the creation of a vision for our future.

On Wednesday, November 16, 2023, the General Manager and Supervisors attended Building
Blocks to Effective Leadership training. The purpose of this class was to review and develop the
necessary building blocks to become an effective leader. Attendees were able to Identify
opportunities to improve leadership skills through self-awareness. Engage in behaviors that
demonstrate caring and interest in our employees. Understand how detailed and personalized
communication creates an engaging work environment and Communicate a compelling
purpose to our employees.

On Thursday, December 14, 2023, all staff attended yearly Fire Safety training. This is always
fun and a well-received training. After the classroom portion, employees are able to use what
they have learned and extinguish a controlled fire.

55



Water Department Report December 2023

Water Quality:

- The Bac-T sample results for November 2023 came back good.

- The Hobo water plant received 8.3 MG of (Minden) water for the month of November.
- North Well and South Well have been turned off for the winter due to low demand.

- Ridgeview Well pumped 1.9 MG of water for November.

- Hobo well has been turned off for the winter.

Water Plant Rounds:
Every morning all operations of the Water plant are checked. Morning rounds consist of,

- The water level and operation of all water storage tanks are checked and recorded.
- The water pressure at the plant and off-site booster stations is checked and recorded.
- All flow and totalizer meters are checked, and the amount of water used is recorded.

- The booster pumps at the plant are checked for proper voltage and current. They are also
checked for excessive temperatures at bearings and checked for any water leaks. All
information is recorded.

- Water samples are taken from the plant, and we check the water for proper chlorine
residual and calibrate the chlorine analyzer as needed. We also check the water for PH,
clarity, and temperature. All information is recorded.

+ Trends of the water system are checked through SCADA. Checking these trends for
anomalies in the distribution system can give us an early warning of future problems.

Maintenance:
- The water department has been working closely with Spanish Springs Construction during
the installation of the new water main on Indian Dr.

- The Water department issued a boil water order for Gregory Ct. due to a loss of pressure
in the main. The existing main was damaged while installing the new water main for the
Indian Dr. water line project. The water main was repaired, and pressure was restored.
Bacteriological sampling was done and came back negative, and the boil water order was
lifted.

- The Water department excavated a water meter pit at 892 Vista Park Dr. due to a leak in
the meter pit. This leak required the removal of a sidewalk panel.

50



Wastewater Department Report December 2023

1: Treatment plant: We decided to haul the sludge out of the northeast pond in-house. Ryan has
been hauling 3 loads, 2 to 3 days a week with the gooseneck trailer. He has reduced the pile by about
a half and will continue hauling as weather allows.

One of the two axles on the gooseneck trailer failed and a wheel fell off the trailer. We decided to
replace both axles due to the age of the trailer. | also repaired the running, brake and turn signal
wiring. | also replaced the rear brake, turn and running light assemblies. We are also having a valve
stem replaced today. This slowed down Ryan’s sludge hauling. He is hauling again as of 12/13/23.

| have been prepping the south exterior wall for paint. We will follow up with gutter installation to
protect the wall from moisture.

Ryan and | have dragged the roads on a regular basis, especially after any rain.

2: Lift Stations:

All 4 lift stations continue to perform satisfactorily.

Summit Plumbing cleaned out Lift 3 and 4 wet wells. 3 wasn’t as bad as we thought it would be,
4 had a lot of rocks at the bottom of the wet well and a lot of grease.

3: Sewer Collection: Ryan inspected problem manholes and is editing the list as needed. He is
up to date on manhole flushing.

Continue weekly check of sewer hot spots {manholes that develop above average grease
buildup) and physically pulling sewer lids, checking for flow, debris, root intrusion and
confirming locations in relation to our plot maps. This ongoing maintenance of the sewer
system has been very successful; we have identified potential problems long before they
develop into messy situations.



AGENDA ITEM 6b.

Reports to the Board:

b. District Accountant Report

5§



INDIAN HILLS GID
CASH BALANCES
AS OF 11/30/23

CASH BALANCES

Operating

Reserved from rate increase

Reserved for Parks

Reserved for streets

Reserved for water tank
Operating Available

Payroll

Money Market-Nevada State Bnk

Reserve for Infrastructure
Reserve for Connections

Reserve for storm water mgt
Reserve for sewer debt reserves
Reserve for short lived assets

Money Market Available
Money Market-Moreton

Pipeline

Reserve for USDA debt service

Reserve for D&M

Reserve for short lived assets
Reserve for AB198 capital repl

Reserve for construction
Pipeline Available

Investment Pool
IHGID

IHCIP (2m 2007 Bonds)
Drinking Revenue Bond

Total

Total

$ 5,650,907.88
$ 2,695,231.38
$ 2580984
$ 1,376,314.42
$ 34214.05

11/30/2023

1,641,437.94
664,536.96
603,636.66
45,587.39
58,949.60
48,223.95

W EH H P BB

587,749.15
40,284.00
67,941.82

340,401.70

122,774.08
16,347.55

& A P EH A

$ 1,519,338.17

$ 49,155.97

$ 220,503.38

$ 3,047,999.43

$ =

$ 4,836,996.95
3 9,214.62
$ 128,356.94
$ 265,859.66
$ 403,431.22



INDIAN HILLS GID

CASH BALANCES BY FUND

11/30/2023
CASH BALANCES 11/30/2023
WATER SEWER ADMIN
QOperating 1,474,876.30 1,943,656.15 2,232,375.41
Reserved from rate increase 1,361,912.25 1,333,319.13
Reserved for streets 100,000.00 1,276,314.42
Reserved for parks 25,809.84
Reserved for water tank 34,214.05
Operating Available -21,250.00 610,337.02 930,251.15
Money Market-Nevada State Bank 432 ,582.58 749,563.27 459,292.09
Reserve for Infrastructure 153,129.88 219,005.31 292 401.77
Reserve for Connections 314,643.33 288,993.33
Reserve for storm water mgt 45,587.39
Reserve for sewer debt service 58,949.60
Reserve for sewer short lived assets 48,223.95
Money Market Available -35,190.63 134,391.08 121,302.93
Money Market-Moreton 1,015,999.81 1,015,999.81 1,015,999.81
Pipeline 587,749.15
Reserve for debt service (fully funded) 40,284.00
Reserve for O&M 67,941.82
Reserve for short lived assets 340,401.70
Reserve for AB198 capital replacement 122,774.08
Reserve for construction 16,347.55
0.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE 959,559.18 1,760,727.91 2,067,553.89

bO



MONTHLY FEE

TOTAL

INDIAN HILLS GID
ATTORNEY EXPENSES
NOVEMBER 2023

3.000.00

3,000.00

bl



%452 0c0e/LiL
%SZT'E LS0C/1LI8
%SLC gsoe/iLL
%00y gcoc/iLiLL
%oP'e gcoe/L/L
3lvd  ININAVL
1S3H3LINI  TVNIL

AInf pue uer anp 90 EYE OV
ATHLNOW 00°25€'E
ATHLINOW 80°#S.'y

AON pue ey anp -

AInr pue uer anp /£'022'65

salleA Junowe juawfied .,
{43M3S %59 "UILVYM %SE) »

10'2£8'0.0° $

v

LININAV

G9'G06'CLS § 31V1S 0402 IANITIdId
£€2'6E5'68L § 3NIT3dId vasn
6v'850'GLL'L $ Y3MES vasn
00°000'6Zy $ +« ONOS L00Z ¥3MISAHIALYM
oLeee’lse ¢ aNOg £00Z ¥3LVM
JONVIVE 1934

£2/0¢€/11 40O SY
1930 WY1 ONOT
aio S77IH NVIANI



INDIAN HILLS GID

ENGINEERING EXPENSES
NOVEMBER 2023
ENGINEERING FEES 2,000.00
INDIAN DRIVE 3,744.01

5,744.01

b3



SPZ6E'L 0S8'GZ 000 000 89°69¢ 00'G /6220 0502
000 0 000 000 000
08661 14 000 000 0866l t
000 0 000 000 000
28'v9 I 000 88't9 l 000
vl'coc 14 000 ¥9'tvol c 0916 4
000 0 000 000 000
000 0 000 000 000
11885 g0l 000 000 L1°88G S0l
ac’ovL 4 000 ot oblL 4 000
000 0 000 000 000
000 0 000 000 000
al'EL 14 000 000 9L °LE} ¥
000 0 000 000 000
000 0 000 000 000
000 0 000 000 000
000 0 000 000 000
sbuuez SINOH SINOH  €20e/LL/LL sinoH  £202/€/1) SIncH
et [eyol  aepAed sep Aed o)ep Aed
€207 12qWanoN
SHNOH LNOTYD/ANILEIAO

191181 JusWwaAoidul |eIBuag) S|IH Uelpy|

(23

SIVLOL

OINVHO3IW
OINVHOIW
d3dNS H3aM3s
d3dNS ¥3IM3S
HO3l ¥3M3s
HO31 d43m3s

1H40ddNS NINQY
1d0ddNs NINaY

H3dNS YILVM
H3dNS Y3aLvm
S13341S
S133yls
SHYVd

SHHvd

HDO3L H31vYM

HO3L H31YM
asfoiduig

oY



INCOME

EXPENSES

NON-CASH

* %k

INDIAN HILLS GID

REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2023

FEES

CONNECTION FEES
CRICKET/VERIZON
GRANT INCOME
INTEREST
MISCELLANEQUS
TOTAL REV

SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
DEBT PRINCIPAL
DEBT INTEREST
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROFIT

infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION}

** |ndian Drive project paid from reserves

WATER
(OVER)/ 41.67%
BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER

1,405,000.00 690,298.48  714,701.52 49.13%
0.00 5,130.00 {5,130.00) 0.00%
12,441.60 4,147.20 8,294.40 33.33%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
4,000.00 24,193.33 (20,193.33} 604.83%
0.00 250.00 (250.00) 0.00%
1,421,441.60 724,019.01 697,422.59 50.94%
437,246.01 155,342.21 281,903.80 35.53%
452,975.00 192,871.98  260,103.02 42.58%
236,732.60 53,091.87 183,640.73 22.43%
55,038.28 25,893.34 29,144.94 47.05%
0.00 6,078.45 (6,078.45) 0.00%
1,181,991.89 433,277.85  748,714.04 36.66%

239,449.71 290,741.16 {51,291.45)
545,000.00 227,083.35 317,916.65 41.67%

s



INCOME

EXPENSES

NON-CASH:

INDIAN HILLS GID

REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2023

FEES

CONNECTION FEES
INTEREST
MISCELLANEQUS

TOTAL REV

SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
DEBT PRINCIPAL
DEBT INTEREST
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROFIT (LOSS)

infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION)

SEWER
(OVER)/ 41.67%
BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER %
1,011,000.00  457,389.43 553,610.57 45.24%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
120.00 16,117.72 (15,997.72) 13431.43%
0.00 250.00 (250.00) 0.00%
1,011,120.00  473,757.15 537,362.85 46.85%
426,189.65  155,885.30 270,304.35 36.58%
221,425.00 101,231.58 120,193.42 45.72%
110,851.63 94,568.49 16,283.14 85.31%
43,A37.33 18,549.95 24,887.38 42.71%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
801,903.61  370,235.32 431,668.29 46.17%
209,216.39 103,521.83 105,694.56
383,000.00 159,583.35 223,416.65 41.67%

o



INCOME

EXPENSES

ADMIN

PARKS

**x

STREETS

NON-CASH:

infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION)

INDIAN HILLS GID
REVENUE AND EXPENSE
NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2023

AD VALOREM

DOUGLAS CO. CONSOLIDATED TAX

PARK REV
GRANT
DONATIONS
MISCELLANEOQUS
INTEREST
STORM WATER
TOTAL REV

SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
CAPITAL OUTLAY
SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
CAPITAL OUTLAY
SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROFIT

** tennis courts from 22-23 budget reserved

GENERAL

(OVER)/ 41.67%

BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER %
1,154,366.00 597,706.52 556,659.48 51.78%
404,710.00 175,686.40 229,013.60 43.41%
500.00 300.00 200.00 60.00%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
0.00 1,809.84 (1,809.84) 0.00%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
2,500.00 17,183.58 (14,683.58) 687.34%
21,700.00 9,163.55 12,536.45 42.23%
1,583,776.00 801,859.89 781,916.11 50.63%
101,919.04 36,753.94 65,165.10 36.06%
223,950.00 62,364.25 161,585.75 27.85%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
220,534.96 64,227.38 156,307.58 29.12%
153,175.00 60,047.97 93,127.03 39.20%
0.00 4,500.00 {4,500.00) 0.00%
235,533.36 72,331.76  163,201.60 30.71%
92,118.00 27,748.17 64,369.83 30.12%
3,307.00 3,307.00 0.00 0.00%
1,030,537.36  331,280.47 699,256.89 32.15%

553,238.64 470,579.42 82,659.22

338,000.00 140,833.35 197,166.65 41.67%

b7



coceg’'sye ¢ (SSOT) IWOODNI 86'825°629's $ SNVO11IV1OL [l£6SS'Ers IGVIIVAY TV.L0L
00°0%
GG /PE'0LS LOI}ONIISUOD IO} 9ASSDY
80'v2'2ZLS  Judwaeoeidal [euded 861y J0) dAIBSIY
0.'LOt'0¥ES S}9SSE PaA|| LOUS JO) SAI9S3Y
Z8'L76'19% RO 10} BAIBSSY
26°68L°08¢ $ S3ISN3AX3 TV1OL 00'¥82'0v$ (pepuny Ajiny) 201AI9S Q9P IO} BAIBSSY
9’8209 $ fepno (eyden G1'6¥L'L8G% sulledid
vE'€68'sT dx31s819)u|
86'1/8'261 $ dx3 BugesadQ
1ZeZbessk ¢ sjjeuag/ssuees
£9'061°6ES- ajqejieAy JoyJen Asuol
CCEPO'FLES SUOIDBUUCY J0) aASSaY
89'6Z1L'€5LS BINJANASEIU| 10} BAISSDY
10°6L0'v2. $ SNN3IAI™ TVLIOL 86°285'ZEr$ 1=el Asuop
00°05¢ 3 3oy 9sIN
0T Livl'y $ UOZIBA
ceeeL've $ JEETE G9G06'ELS ¢ a)e1s auledid
00°0£L'S $ $99§ UOKOBUUOD £76£6'6E. ¢ vasnaunadid  |00°052°8.$ a|qenieay bunesado
66'L6¥'9 $ $82j 3jeT 00°052'evL ¢ (%SE) ZLOZ-puog J9lepy  |SO'PLZ'VES UB) J3JEM 10} paAISSaY
veIPP'96E S s99 ajey aseq 0L€EE'18Z $ £00zZ-puog 1B1ep  {GZT'TLE'LOE LS asealdul 9)e) WOY panISsay
co'gee'/8C $ s984 JasM 0£'9/8'viv'L$ Bunesado
SIASNIJX3 / SANNIAIY SIDNVIVE NVYO1 S3IONVIVE HSVD

£€20c/0¢/L)

AYYIAINNS ANNd ¥31VM

aio© ST1IH NVIGNI

bg



z£'060'861 $ {$SO71) INOODNI 6'80¢°1L6E°L $ SNYO11VLOL |01'8ZL'%PLiS IANGVIIVAY Y101
80°16EPELS ajqeliey jayJely Aouon
£8'999'6.Z $ SISNIAX3 TV1OL
- $ Aepno (endeD
gee¥sel % dx3 1sas8yu| G6'€2Z'evd S]OSSE Panl| HOUS JOMaS 10) aAIessy
85'LET 0L $ dx3 Bunesado 09'6v6'95% SDIAISS JGOp JOMSS 10} BAIDSDY
og'geg'ssl ¢ sjijauag/saueleg ££°C66'88C% SUQIIRULIOY) JO) BAISSTY
1£°600'642% SINONIISBIYU| Joj aAMISSY
1T€95'6v.LS 18%4B | ASUOW
SL LSL'eLyS ANN3AIY V101
00°052% awIodul OSIN z0'2££'019% ajqepeAy Bunesado
ZLLLL'OLS 1S9l SR —
000% $39) UOIIO3ULDD 6+8S0'GLL'L $ puoq Jamas Yasn
86°L5V'9% $59) Qe 00052'922 ¢ (%G9) ZLOZ-puog Jamag €L'6LECEE LS 8sE9J0UI )8! WO} PAAISSSY
G LE6'0GPS 5384 1980 - $ 6661-puog James  [GL'9S9'EVE'LS Bunelado
SASNIAXI / SANNIAIY SADNYIVE NYO' SADNYIVE HSVO
£20zZ/0L/L )L
AHVIINNS ANNd 43M3S

a9 ST11IH NVIANI

&l



N

Zr'6.5°0.1% (SS01) IWODNI SO'FrLLS0'LS JIGYHVYAY TVLOL
L'08Z°1eEs SISNIAdX3 VL0l £6°20¢'1Z1L$ s|qepeay jaxep Keuow
00°208'.L% Lepno epden
6€09L'051$ dx3 Buneladp
80°€lLE'ELLS Sljsusg/sauees

6€/85°G¥$ 16LU J31EM WIOJS 10} BAISSSY
12 10v'262% aJnmannselu| 1oy aAIasay
68°658'L08% ANNIAIH TVL0L 60°28Z'651$ 1B ASUO
¥3'608'L$ SNOBUE|IROSIW
00'0% PaAIBoal puny Juels)
85'e8L'21$ awoaU| 1SaIU| ZL ' 0c6s a|qejieAy Sunesedo
00°00€$ S92 uoiealosy /8'619'GZ$ syied Joj poaIasay
25°90/'265% Xe| WaloeA py ZrvLe'9LT' LS $]9911S O] POAISSaY
0P 969'G/L$ XE| P3IEpIosuos)
GG'€0L'6% $934 Ja3lem ulalg (N AT AT A A Bunesado
NINGY
SISNIdX / SINNIAIY SIONVYIVE HSYD
€202Z/0¢€/L L
(W3¥0vA av)

AUVIAINNS S13TMLS ‘SMHVd ‘NINAVY
aio© ST1IH NVIANI



LL10V'262
LOGETVLT
00'GEE'EET
0005Z'esT
00085'61¢C
00'059°G6|
00°0S¥'€Ll
00°0S€'TYL
00'885'¢2l
00 969'€6
00266 '¥9
00°88¥'LE
00'006'8l

000

sasnppuadxa panosdde 10} WaY} 95N am SE ISEBIOIP SIAWNSLOS ||IM SWNOWE SAIBSSY

S3AY3ISIY ¥d3ad
NINAY

l£'S00'61LT €L'6LE'EEE'L
96'9¥5'202 68'/20'69Z°L
00°2€€'481 00'6EP'98L°L
00°2£7'591 000L0°€20'L
00'Ze6'erl 00°S¥Z'66L
00'L89°ET) 00'S0L'585
00°'289°'€0} 00'286'98E
00'289'68 00°€95'L22
00'169'69 00251°66
00'9¥S'vL 00'v9€'L2
00'¥56'6S 000
00'vL8'9Y 000
000LE'LE 000
0000522 ocoo
S3AY3SIY Ud3a  SIAYISIY ALvd
HILVMILSYM

¥202-110C WO

g8'6z1'cSl GZT'TL6'LIE") £e/oe/L) Jo se
6£'995'881 6¢ ¥66'ZET') £20E/0L/9
00°0.£°904 00'89¥'9LL'L 2202/0E/9
00°028'¥91 00L¥2'126 1202/0g/9
oo'i1zg'eel 00'+8¥'€29 0202/0e/9
0002021} 00°998'9%. 6102/0/9
008296 00'2s0'esy 8102/0c/9
00°829'¢L 00'¥69°'29T 2102/0E/9
00°0£1'04 00'9EE'ZEL 9L0z2/0E/2
00vLL'8P 00°L€9'8¢ §10Z/0E/9
00'008'SL 000 ¥ L0/
00'961'6S 000 £102/08/9
00°00L0F 000 ZL0Z/0E/9
00'00S'22 000 L 102/0/9
SIAY3STY HdIG  S3IAMISIY 3Lvd| 3Lva

Y3LYM

UVIA TVISId A8 STIAYISIY HSVO

aio ST7H NVIANI

l-l.‘l-l!

7



AGENDA ITEM 6c.

Reports to the Board:

¢. Engineer Report



AGENDA ITEM 6d.

Reports to the Board:

d. Attorney Report

/3



AGENDA ITEM 7.

Discussion and possible action to adopt a
performance evaluation form for the General
Manager.

(Vice Chairman, Bob Stulac, Secretary/Treasurer,
Vicky Lufrano and Administrative Services
Supervisor/Human Resources, Brooke
Thompson)

74



IHGID Manager Evaluation

Financial Stewardship

O

o}

Utilizes finances, budgets, facilities, equipment, materials, products, and services
to optimize IHGID costs.

Develops and oversees District Capital Improvement Projects, and projections;
develops and implements short- and long-range, and strategic financial plans for
District.

Prepares applicable IHGID budget, actively monitors and adheres to it.

Communication Skills

<

(o]
o]
o]

o}

Effectively communicates, both orally and written, with individuals and groups.
Presents ideas in an organized, clear, and concise manner.

Employs tact and discretion and accepts constructive input.

Establishes and maintains effective communication and relations with internal and
external IHGID customers, staff, public, other entities, organizations, and the
Board of Trustees.

Ensures full disclosure and transparency to the Board of Trustees.

Leadership and Professionalism

o
o
o]

o

Exhibits integrity by being honest, accountable, and trustworthy.

Demonstrates initiative, persistence, and ability to meet established IHGID goals.
Manage and leads IHGID employees by example and effectively contribute to the
development, cohesion, and productivity of the team.

Represent the District in a positive manner at all times and attend District
sponsored events.

Continuously seek ways to improve efficiency, productivity, and processes.

Regulatory and Legal Compliance

o Manage the District in full accordance with policies, agreements, union, and other
contracts. Makes new policy recommendations.

o Ensures compliance with federal, state, and local code and legal requirements
applicable to areas of responsibility.

o Ensures compliance with safety and OSHA guidelines.

o Displays understanding and ability to convey current contracts, agreements,
ordinances, policies, and regulations.

Initiative

o Identify District needs in prepared monthly reports to the board; actively develop
and collaborate action plans to seek positive or alternative solutions for problems
or issues that arise.

o Develop skills of staff and engage in succession planning.

o Prudently research and apply new technologies and industry best practices.

o Take personal responsibility for continuous improvement, learning and growth.

/5



INDIAN HILLS GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
GENERAL MANAGER PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Name:
Position:

Department:

Hire Date:

Period covered by this evaluation:

Ratings used in this evaluation:

Exceptional:
Exceeds Expectations:
Achieves:

in Development or
Needs Improvement:

Unsatisfactory:

Not applicable:

The employee significantly and consistently surpasses performance expectations
and achieves beyond the regular assignment in all areas.

The employee frequently surpasses performance expectations and demonstrates
unique understanding of work well beyond job requirements.

The employee demonstrates solid performance that consistently fulfills expectations
and at times may exceed expectations.

The employee is either still developing this competency or is not consistently
achieving expectations.

The employee’s performance is consistently below expectations and/or the
employee has failed to make reasonable progress toward previously identified
area(s) for improvement.

Not applicable to specific position.

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP

[euondsaxy
suonejoadxy
Spasaxy

SaARIYIY
Juawaaosdwi spaau
Jo juawdojarap uj
Aloyoeysnpesun
aqeatjddy 10N

Utilizes finances, budgets, facilities, equipment, materials, products, and services

to optimize IHGID costs.

Develops and oversees District Capital Improvement Projects, and projections;
develops and implements short- and long-range, and strategic financial plans for

District.

Prepares applicable IHGID budget, actively monitors and adheres to it.

Comments:

b




m | mm » 35 c| =
COMMUNICATION SKILLS 2lg8 ) 222 5|3
3" | “kBg| Z|35
- |32 s -1 1
s S5 g
o < | @
33
]
2g
Effectively communicates, both orally and written, with individuals and groups.
Presents ideas in an organized, clear, and concise manner.
Employs tact and discretion and accepts constructive input.
Establishes and maintains effective communication and relations with internal
and external {HGID customers, staff, public, other entities, organizations, and the
Board of Trustees.
Ensures full disclosure and transparency to the Board of Trustees.
Comments:
m | mm 3T c =
LEADERSHIP AND PROFESSIONALISM 2|28 % ‘i‘.g o 1;?
s15° | “28| 8|35
[ a T - n
= |3 93 [} o
3o | <2 | &
33
[]
20

Exhibits integrity by being honest, accountable, and trustworthy.

Demonstrates initiative, persistence, and ability to meet established IHGID goals.

Manage and leads IHGID employees by example and effectively contribute to the
development, cohesion, and productivity of the team.

Represent the District in a positive manner at all times and attend District
sponsored events,

Continuously seek ways to improve efficiency, productivity, and processes.

Comments:

77




REGULATORY AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE

jeuondsaxy
suonepadxy
spaaoxg

SaANYIY
juawaacidun spaau
10 wawdosaap uy|
Aoyoejsnesun
2jqesyjddy 10N

Manage the District in full accordance with policies, agreements, union, and other
contracts. Makes new policy recommendations.

Ensures compliance with federal, state, and local code and legal requirements
applicable to areas of responsibility.

Ensures compliance with safety and OSHA guidelines.

Displays understanding and ability to convey current contracts, agreements,
ordinances, policies, and regulations.

Comments:

INITIATIVE

|euondaoxy
suonejsadxy
Spaadxg

SOABIYDY
1uawaaocidw) spasu
10 wawdojgasp u)
Aiojoejsnesun
a|qeanddy 1oN

Identify District needs in prepared monthly reports to the board; actively develop
and collaborate action plans to seek positive or alternative solutions for problems
or issues that arise.

Develop skills of staff and engage in succession planning.

Prudently research and apply new technologies and industry best practices.

Take personal responsibility for continuous improvement, learning and growth.

Comments:




m mm P |3 5 [ = =
OVERALL PERFORMANCE RATING 2 §§ % 28 | = §
s | "B ¢
=2 eg ©| &
33 | <@ | @
29 |
a i
S | -
Overall performance [
FUTURE GOALS AND OBJECTIVES
(as applicable)
Trustee Comments:
Employee’s Comments:
Employee Signature: Date:
Date:

Trustee Signature:

79



AGENDA ITEM 8.

Discussion only regarding use of district vehicles
and equipment on public and private roads and
easements within IHGID. (Trustee, Garcia)

50



Background: Questions and observations by a resident on Long Drive, communicated to me during Golf
Cart Parade coardination. Residents are asking for clarification on the use of Speed Trailer within the
Springs HOA,

| have some ideas about how we may provide a reference tool for GM/Staff to reinforce
when/where/how the district may or may not operate district vehicles and equipment on "private
property” or more specifically within an HOA.

The mobile radar sign was purchased through Traffic Logix for $2,862.00 and has no annual subscription
fee. Data from the mobile radar sign must be physically taken off at the site of the sign. The permanent

sign was $2,499.00 when purchased in 2019 and has an annual subscription fee of $500.00. The cost of

that same sign today is $2,749.00. The data from this sign is obtained through the Traffic Logix cloud.

Traffic Logix has many options available from basic your speed signs to interactive signs displaying
custom messages and images. They offer several mounting options from permanently or temporarily
mounted signs.



AGENDA ITEM 9.

Discussion only regarding the District Personnel
Policy, NRS 281.210, and Resolution 2009R-02
regarding Trustee concerns of employing family
members of existing employees.

(General Manager, Chris Johnson)

3a



Response from Labor Law Attorney Joel Locke:

Good afternoon,

| have researched the issue, read NRS 281.210, as well as all of the AGOs on the subject. Here, it is
important that Chris has all of the hiring and firing power in the GID; not Brooke. Further, there has been
a pre-screening/blocking of any participation by Brooke in the application, hiring process, and future
grievance/disciplinary issues. Additionally, Brooke works in administration and not in the field. There will
be little overlap and none in work responsibilities. As such, | would disclose it to the Board members so
they are aware of it, but she is not his supervisor, did not hire him, did not advocate to hire him, will not
work in the same department as him, and both report to the GM.

| think you are good to go-

Joel W. Locke, Esq.
Allison MacKenzie, Ltd.

g3



encouraged to report incidents of threats or acts of violence of which
s/he 1s aware.

3. Reports of violence or threatening behavior should be made to
Human Resources, an employee’s immediate supervisor or
manager, or any other supervisory or management employee.
The District is committed to ensuring that employees reporting
real or perceived threats in good faith will not be subject to
harassment or retaliation. Nothing in this policy alters any other
reporting obligation established in the District’s policies or in
state, federal, or other applicable law.

2.6.4 Violation of Policy

Violations of this policy by any employee will lead to disciplinary
action, up to and including termination and/or appropriate legal
action. The District may also take appropriate disciplinary action
against any employee who intentionally makes a false or
malicious statement about coworkers or others.

Actions of law enforcement personnel which are necessary in the
performance of their duties and are consistent with policies or
sound law enforcement procedures shall not be considered to
violate this policy. In addition, actions necessary for bona fide
self-defense or protection of employees of the District or of
District property shall not be considered to violate this policy.

2.6.5 Temporary Restraining Orders

The District may apply for an order for protection against harassment in
the workplace under the terms of NRS 33.200 — 33.360.

2.7 Employment of Relatives

Pursuant to the provisions of NRS 281.210, no officer or appointing
authority of the District may employ in any capacity on behalf of the
District any relative of such person who is within the third degree of
consanguinity or affinity. Existing employees may continue in their
current position following the election or appointment of their relative to
an appointing authority position.

In addition, no person shall be employed in a position if such
employment would require direct or indirect supervision by a relative
who is within the third degree of consanguinity or affinity. For purposes
of this paragraph, supervision includes all levels in the chain of
command.

2.8 Code of Ethical Standards

The elected and appointed officers and employees of District recognize that holding
public office and/or employment is a public trust. To preserve that trust, District
demands the highest code of conduct and ethical standards. The purpose of this policy is
to define and establish the standards of ethical conduct that are required of public
officials and employees so as to ensure their professional integrity in the performance of

their duties.

Personnel Policies Adopted August 15,
Revised Qctober 20, 202t

00T 8L/
26

IHGID Human Resources



MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS AND PROHIBITIONS

NRS 281.210 Officers of State, political subdivision and Nevada System of Higher
Education prohibited from employing relatives; exceptions; penalties.

1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, it is unlawful for any person acting as a
school trustee, state, township, municipal or county officer, or as an employing authority of the
Nevada System of Higher Education, any school district or of the State, any town, city or county,
or for any state or local board, agency or commission, elected or appointed, to employ in any
capacity on behalf of the State of Nevada, or any county, township, municipality or school
district thereof, or the Nevada System of Higher Education, any relative of such a person or of
any member of such a board, agency or commission who is within the third degree of
consanguinity or affinity.

2. This section does not apply:

(a) To school districts, when the teacher or other school employee is not related to more than
one of the trustees or person who is an employing authority by consanguinity or affinity and
receives a unanimous vote of all members of the board of trustees and approval by the
Department of Education.

(b) To school districts, when the teacher or other school employee has been employed by an
abolished school district or educational district, which constitutes a part of the employing county
school district, and the county school district for 4 years or more before April 1, 1957.

(c) To the spouse of the warden of an institution or manager of a facility of the Department
of Corrections.

(d) To relatives of officers and employees who are blind of the Bureau of Services to
Persons Who Are Blind or Visually Impaired of the Rehabilitation Division of the Department of
Employment, Training and Rehabilitation when those relatives are employed as automobile
drivers for those officers and employees.

3. Nothing in this section:

(a) Prevents any officer in this State, employed under a flat salary, from employing any
suitable person to assist in any such employment, when the payment for the service is met out of
the personal money of the officer.

(b) Disqualifies any widow with a dependent as an employee of any officer or board in this
State, or any of its counties, townships, municipalities or school districts.

4. A person employed contrary to the provisions of this section must not be compensated
for the employment.

5. Any person violating any provisions of this section is guilty of a gross misdemeanor.

[1:75:1925; A 1927, 43; 1935, 172; 1951, 22] + [2:75:1925; NCL § 4852] + [3:75:1925;
NCL § 4853]—(NRS A 1957, 704; 1960, 369; 1963, 1178; 1967, 549; 1969, 227; 1973,
563, 1406; 1975, 554; 1977, 870; 1989, 1958; 1993, 374, 1550; 1995, 579; 1997, 1171; 1999,
174; 2001 Special Session, 234, 235; 2003, 289, 306, 1131, 1132)

85



INDIAN HILLS GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
3394 JAMES LEE PARK RD. #A
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89705
TEL: (775) 267-2805  FAX: (775) 267-3510

Resolution 2009R-02

A Resolution of the Board of Trustees to adopt board norms and procedures for
meetings, related functions and activities.

WHEREAS, it is the intent and desire of the Indian Hills General Improvement
District Board of Trustees to conduct its business in an orderly and fair manner; and

WHEREAS, there are certain basic rights of due process and opportunity to
address issues with equity, fairness and equal protection of the law; and

WHEREAS, certain parliamentary procedures have been found to be useful in
order to assure that the communication and process of government are fair, reasonable,

and just; and

WHEREAS, the Board has a duty to proceed with the business of government in
an efficient and orderly fashion; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to establish uniform norms and procedures in
order to accomplish these goals.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Indian Hills General Improvement District Board of
Trustees does hereby resolve as follows:

SECTIONI: Actin the Public Interest

A. Trustees and staff shall recognize that stewardship of the public interest must
be the primary concern.

B. Trustees will work for the common good of the people of Indian Hills.

C. Trustees will ensure fair and equal treatment of all persons, claims and
transactions coming before the Board.

SECTIONII: Advocacy

A. Trustees shall represent the official policies or positions of the Board when
designated as delegates for this purpose.

B. When representing their individual opinions and positions, Trustees shall
explicitly state they do not represent the Indian Hills General Improvement
District, nor will they allow the inference that they do.

Resolution 2009 R-02 1
Adopted September 16th, 2009; As Amended September 7, 2016 g b



SECTION III:

Role of the Chair

A. Authority of the Chair

1.

2.

The Chair, subject to the appeal of the full Board, shall have the
authority to streamline the business of the Board by either seeking
clarification of motions which appear to be out of order or by ruling
any such motions out of order. In so ruling, the Chair shall be
courteous and fair and should presume that the moving party is acting
in good faith.

The Chair’s position is as a leader among equals.

B. Chair to Facilitate Board of Trustee Meetings

L.

The Chair is the presiding officer at all Board meetings. In the Chair’s
absence, the Vice- Chair shall be the presiding officer. In the absence
of the Chair and Vice-Chair the Secretary/ Treasurer shall preside until
the assembly elects a temporary chair.

All questions and remarks shall be addressed to the Chair.

The Chair shall decide all questions of order; subject, however, to an
appeal to the Board.

The Chair shall recognize the Trustees, staff and citizens desiring to
speak.

The Chair will allow other Trustees to speak first on items before the
Board and will then state his/her summary.

The Chair shall not permit unauthorized remarks from the audience
including applause, stamping of feet, whistles, yells or shouting, and/
or similar demonstrations.

The Chair shall designate a time limit for public comment. Upon
expiration of that time, the Chair shall inform the citizen that his or her
time has expired and promptly move on to the next speaker or issue on
the agenda. In the event a speaker is given additional time to conclude
remarks, the Chair shall specify the amount of additional time given,

The Chair may call for a short recess in a Board meeting when deemed
necessary. If a speaker becomes abusive, boisterous, or discourteous
an immediate declaration may be made by the Chair that the Board is
in recess. Upon reconvening the meeting, if the prior speaker attempts
to resume, he or she can either be informed that his or her three (3)
minute speaking opportunity has expired, or be allowed to complete
the balance of the three (3) minute speaking opportunity.

Resolution 2009 R-02 2 g 7

Adopted September 16th, 2009; As Amended September 7, 2016



9.

SECTIONIV:

The Chair will represent the District and the majority opinion of the
Board on all actions/ positions taken by the Board.

Role of the Board of Trustees

A. Trustees Conduct in General

L.

2.

Trustees shall treat everyone with courtesy.

Inappropriate behavior is derogatory and damages the perception of
the District.

While the Board is in session the Trustees and District staff shall
preserve strict order and decorum. No Trustee shall delay or interrupt
the proceedings of the Board or interrupt any member while speaking.

Trustees should give a signal to the Chair (by a raised hand) to indicate
they want to speak. The Chair will acknowledge them before they
begin speaking.

Any Trustee shall have the right to express dissent from, or protest to,
or comment upon, any action of the Board and have the option to enter
the reason into the minutes, such as, “T would like the minutes to show
that I am opposed to this action for the following reasons ....”

Once a vote is taken on an issue, Trustees will support the law made
by the Board. If a Trustee wants it to be reconsidered, he/she will
inform the Board. When possible, the Trustees should attempt to reach
consensus on an issue. When this is not possible, the majority vote
shall prevail. However, the Board shall respect the opinion of the
minority.

Trustees shall publicly share substantive information, which they may
have received from sources outside the public decision-making process
that is relevant to a matter under consideration by the Board.

When a rumor is involved, it is that Trustee’s responsibility to not
validate the rumor or repeat it to others. Assess the rumor by
addressing the person the rumor involves. If a rumor affects the
District or its employees, then the issue should be brought to the
attention of the General Manager.

Allow for everyone’s opinion to be heard and respected, even if they
do not win the vote or prevail on the issue. Strive for a win-win
situation by respecting diverse opinions.

10. Trustees will allow room for dialogue. When discussing an agenda

item, Trustees will allow the opportunity to dialogue with each other to
build consensus on an item.

Resolution 2009 R-02 3

Adopted September 16th, 2009; As Amended September 7, 2016

5§



11. Any member of the Board of Trustees may move to require the Chair
to enforce the rules and an affirmative vote of a majority of Trustees
present shall be required to do so.

B. Trustee Conduct with one another
1. Trustees will value each other’s time.
2. All Trustees have the opportunity to speak and agree to disagree.

3. Trustees will avoid negative comments that could offend other
Trustees during public meetings, in the press, or any other time.

4. Trustees will practice civility and decorum in discussions and debate.
5. Trustees will honor the role of the Chair in maintaining order.

6. Trustees may disagree on issues and be on different sides of an issue,
but they will always respect and value each other as individuals.

C. Trustee Conduct with General Manager and Staff

1. Trustees should speak directly with the General Manager regarding
District business.

2. The Board, through a majority vote, directs the General Manager to
implement Board policy decisions through the administrative functions
of the District.

3. Trustees shall respect and adhere to the District’s form of government,
which is a District operating through a District Manager. The Board is
the visionary policy maker and the legislative body of the District.
The General Manager is responsible for implementation of Board
policies.

4. When possible, Trustees shall seek answers to questions on an item on
the agenda from the General Manager prior to the meeting.

5. Trustees have no greater or different access to District staff or
employees than any other member of the general public. Trustees may
only use District staff’s time to address District business. Personal
matters may not be discussed with staff during business hours.

6. District employees are not employed to listen to a Trustee’s personal
problems not involving the District. Staff time is valuable and
precious; inquiries of staff should be brief and related strictly to
District business.

Resolution 2009 R-02 4
Adopted September 16th, 2009; As Amended September 7, 2016 g?



7. Trustees shall treat staff professionally and be respectful of their time.
Trustees who require detailed explanations regarding District business
may speak with staff, ask questions, and receive information by
appointment only; appointments shall be scheduled through the
General Manager. Trustees have no authority to direct staff, nor to
rally staff support for the goals of individual Trustees.

8. Trustees shall not publicly criticize an individual employee. Any
criticism of staff shall be directed to the General Manager.

9. Trustees shall not involve themselves with administrative functions.

10. Trustees will not get involved in personnel issues except during a
closed session where personnel issues may be discussed. This includes
labor negotiations, pay and classification issues and all other forms of
personnel matters. The single exception is the Board’s annual or other
performance review of the General Manager, which may include
hiring or firing, changing compensation or benefits, disciplining and
other forms of personnel matters related to General Manager position.

11. If a Trustee has a concern about a department, District service, staff
action, or an employee, he/she should discuss the concern with the
General Manager.
D. Trustee Conduct with the Public

1. Trustees will make the public feel welcome.

2. Trustees shall not be partial, prejudiced, or disrespectful toward the
public.

3. Trustees shall not make snappy or sarcastic comments to the public.

4. Trustees shall treat members of the public equally and refer to the
citizens’ surnames.

5. Trustees shall make no promises to the public on behalf of the Board.

6. During meetings, no Trustee shall debate issues with members of the
public.

7. Trustees shall listen courteously and attentively to all public comments
before the Board and the information presented by staff.

8. Matters raised during public comment shall not be discussed at that

meeting. The only exception is for placement of the new topic on a
future agenda for discussion.

Resolution 2009 R-02 5
Adopted September 16th, 2009; As Amended September 7, 2016 9 O



E. Trustee Conduct with Other Agencies

1.

2.

4.

Trustees shall be clear about representing the District or personal
interests to members of other agencies.

Trustees shall project a positive image of the District when dealing
with other agencies

Individual Trustees can lobby or discuss with other legislators,
government officials or developers, issues that have been adopted by
the Board or are Board policy; Trustees may not represent themselves
as a District Trustee if the matter involves an individual issue.

Trustees shall show tolerance and respect of other agencies’ opinions
and issues and agree to disagree with them when necessary.

F. Trustee Conduct with Committees

1.

2.

The Chair works through the committee chairs.

Trustees shall treat all Committee members with appreciation and
respect.

G. Trustee Conduct with the Media

.

Trustees shall never go “off the record,” discuss inside information
pertaining to closed session, personnel, litigation, or acquisition of

property items when dealing with the media. Providing background
information is acceptable.

H. Obtaining the Floor

L.

Trustees wishing to speak must first obtain the floor by being
recognized by the Chair. The Chair must recognize any Trustee who
seeks the floor when appropriately entitled to do so. Recognition will
be given in the order requested.

With the concurrence of the Chair, a Trustee holding the floor may
address a question to another Trustee and that Trustee may respond
while the floor is still held by the Trustee asking the question. A
Trustee may opt not to answer a question while another Trustee has the
floor.

Once recognized by the Chair, a Trustee shall not be interrupted while
speaking unless called to order by the Chair or unless another Trustee
raises a point of order or personal privilege. If a Trustee, while
speaking, is called to order, they shall cease speaking until the
question of order is determined and if determined to be in order, may
proceed.

Resolution 2009 R-02 6

Adopted September 16th, 2009; As Amended September 7, 2016

Q1



SECTION V: Role of District Staff

Al

District staff will provide written analysis and information on all agenda
itemns prior to the meetings, if needed. Additionally, a copy of the materials,
including technical reports, will be available to the public.

Staff, if needed, will be available to answer questions of the Trustees prior to
and during Board meetings subject to the direction of the General Manager.

Staff will not be required to debate issues with the public or the Board.

During Board meetings, Trustees and staff shall turn off or switch any
electronic equipment such as pagers and cellular telephones to a silent mode.

Trustees and staff who participate in meetings with outsiders should be
apprised of any follow up correspondence to that party, if needed, particularly
if there is some controversy; the General Manager and all Trustees should get
copies of all correspondence.

Staff will remain objective on issues. Staff should not be an advocate for
issues unless so directed by the General Manager and/or the Board. Rather,
they should promote or assist the efforts of the Board.

Staff will inform the Trustees as soon as possible of upcoming issues,
particularly issues that will impact the District significantly and may be
coming before the Board on short notice.

If only one or two Trustees feel something is controversial or a “hot” issue
and it may be coming before the Board, the General Manager will inform the
Chair on the issue. It is up to the Chair to inform other members of the Board.

The General Manager will advise management to become more aware of and
sensitive to potentially political or controversial issues coming before the
Board.

Staff will implement all Board policies as directed by the General Manager;
staff will not implement any actions for the District without prior approval of
the Board and General Manager.

SECTION VI: Role of the Public

A,

Members of the public attending the Board meetings shall observe the same
rules and decorum applicable to the Trustees and staff.

Members of the public wishing to speak during the public participation
portion of the Board meeting shall prepare a presentation of not more that
three (3) minutes. Each person addressing the Board is given three (3) minutes
to speak. Comments should be complete at this time.

Resolution 2009 R-02 7

Adopted September 16th, 2009; As Amended September 7, 2016

93



C. All speakers must approach the podium when recognized by the Chair,
Speakers shall sign in and state their name for the record. Members of the
public shall only speak from the podium. Applause, stamping of feet, whistles,
yells or shouting, and/or similar demonstrations is unacceptable public
behavior.

D. Members of the public shall not make any impertinent and slanderous
remarks, or become boisterous while addressing the Trustees or while
attending the Board meeting in a manner that impedes the Trustees to conduct
an orderly meeting.

E. Members of the public shall turn/ switch any electronic equipment such as
pagers and cellular telephones to off or a silent mode while attending a Board
meeting,

F. Members of the public shall not approach individual Trustees while the
meeting is in progress.

SECTION VII: Trustee Requests

A. All Trustee requests dealing with policy issues and those requests which may
be construed as direction go through the General Manager, except for general
inquiries or questions, in which case Trustees may go to department heads or
key staff as provided in Section IV.C. Trustees will not direct employees.

B. Any request from Trustees requiring financing or budget must go through the
General Manager.

SECTION VIII: Presentations and Events

A. Trustee presentations during a Board meeting are limited to the item or issue
being deliberated. To ensure that the appropriate presentation equipment is
available, Trustees must provide the General Manager advance notice of the
intent to make a presentation.

B. When there is an accomplishment by one or two Trustees, it is appropriate for
them to be at the opening, groundbreaking, ribbon cutting, etc., to accept the
recognition and acknowledgment along with the District staff that worked on
the project. All Trustees will be informed of the event and given the
opportunity to attend. If it is a major event or a District-wide accomplishment,
particularly those that are positive and acknowledge the District’s efforts, all
Trustees will be invited to attend.

C. During public presentations the Chair will represent the District; however, all
Trustees will be consulted prior to the presentation and may be asked to
represent the District at various events and meetings.

Resolution 2009 R-02 8
Adopted September 16th, 2009; As Amended September 7, 2016



SECTION IX: THGID Agenda
A. Any Trustee or the Chair can put items on the agenda.
B. Either staff or Trustees can present agenda topics.
C. Items on the consent calendar shall only be those that are:

a. Administrative in nature (follows existing rules, procedures, ordinances,
regulations, or Board policy direction)

Do not require a public hearing

Are not second readings of ordinances

Are items already approved in the budget

Are traditional and/or routine items.

oo o

D. The General Manager will endeavor to identify controversial agenda items
and associated issues to try and avoid any “surprise” conflicts. It should be
recognized that sometimes this is unavoidable.

E. Trustees will be given sufficient lead and preparation time for reviewing
agendas.

SECTION X: Closed Session Confidentiality

A. All proper matters discussed during closed sessions shall be private and
confidential, and the disclosure by any Trustee or other person of the topics or
details of such matters is expressly prohibited.

B. If a Trustee feels it is necessary, then preliminary notes should be taken
which should not be kept as the Board’s permanent records. All closed
session information, verbal or written, is confidential and private.

SECTION XI: Compliance and Enforcement

A. Trustees have the primary responsibility to ensure that ethical standards are
understood and met by every Trustee, and that the public can continue to
have full confidence in the integrity of government. Trustees shall abide by
the terms of Nevada Revised Statutes Section 281 and 281A.

B. The Chair and the Trustees have the responsibility to intervene when actions
of members are in violation of the standard norms and procedures.

SECTION XII: Administration

A. The Trustees will review and revise the Board norms and procedures as
needed or every two (2) years.

B. During Board discussions, deliberations, and proceedings, the Chair has been
designated with the primary responsibility to ensure that the Trustees, staff
and members of the public adhere to the Board’s norms and procedures.
Resolution 2009 R-02 9
Adopted September 16th, 2009; As Amended September 7, 2016 Q L}[



Adopted this 7th day of September, 2016 by:

Chairman, Chris Johnson
Board of Trustees

Vice Chairperson, Denise Pierini
Board of Trustees

Secretary/ Treasurer, Brian Patrick
Board of Trustees

Trustee, Bill Eisele
Board of Trustees

Trustee, Ron Lynch
Board of Trustees

Resolution 2009 R-02 10
Adopted September 16th, 2009; As Amended September 7, 2016 Qg



AGENDA ITEM 10.

Discussion and possible action to approve Draft
Minutes from the November 15, 2023, Board
Meeting.

'



Minutes
Indian Hills General Improvement District
Board of Trustees Meeting
District Office
3394 James Lee Park Rd. #A
Carson City, NV 89705
November 15, 2023
Regular Board Meeting 6:00 P.M.

Trustees Present: Chairman Dunham, Vice Chairman Stulac, Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano, Trustee
Garcia, and Trustee Siegman.

Trustees Absent: none.

Staff Present: General Manager Chris Johnson and Administrative Services Supervisor/Human
Resources Brooke Thompson.

Others Present: District Counsel Chuck Zumpft, District Engineer’s Collin Sturge and Tim
Russell. Residents Kathy Waters, Ben Walker, Debbie Walker, and Tammy James.

6:00P.M. - Regular Meeting

1. Call to Order
Request that Cell Phones and Pagers be turned off for recording purposes.
Chairman Dunham called the meeting to order at 6:00PM.

2, Pledge of Allegiance: Led by Trustee Garcia.

3. Public Interest Comment: Resident Kathy Waters stated that she lives at 963 Opalite drive.
Kathy stated thank you for changing the agenda and placing the reports at the top, it really
helps it is hard for her to get through everything before the reports and the reports are also
important. Kathy thanked Chris for coming out to her house to do the fire inspection on
defensible space. Kathy stated that she got a call from BLM an hour later and he was there
two hours later, this was on a totally unrelated matter, but she told him about the inspection
visit and he, the BLM employee volunteered to help her out and it should be done by spring.
Today the rockery work, they were able to deliver rock and she will be able to finish her
yard. She is happy with the progress being made.

4. Approval of Agenda

Vice Chairman Stulac motioned to approve the agenda. Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano seconded.
Motion carried unanimously.

Minutes of the November 15, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting

17



s. Reports to the Board:

a. General Manager Report
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed his report with the board.
1. Administrative
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Administrative report
with the board.
2. Water
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Water report with the
board.
3. Wastewater
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Wastewater report with
the board.
b. District Accountant Report
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Accountant report with the
board.
c. Engineer Report
District Engineer Collin Sturge stated on the Indian Drive project, we are in
contract and construction will start on November 20" with the water and
sewer portion complete by January 8" and the road in May. May 1% is the
final completion date.
d. Attorney Report
District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated he has nothing to report.

Public comment: none.

6. Discussion only regarding the District’s monthly water and sewer rates.
General Manager Chris Johnson stated that the water rates for the regional water will be
increasing 4.0% next fiscal year. Chris stated that he will bring a proposal back to the board
in January.

The board briefly discussed this item.

Public comment: Resident Kathy Waters stated that she did see an increase in her utility bills
between the summer and winter months, it was a 150% increase. The water is a small number on
the bill stick with the water and think of things that will help residents offset the increase to balance
it out.

7. Discussion and possible action regarding General Manager Chris Johnson’s annual
performance evaluation.
General Manager Chris Johnson went through a slide show presentation showing

accomplishments over the last year with the board. Chris asked for a 7.0% increase.

The board discussed this item at length.

Public comment: Resident Tammy James stated that the board knew this evaluation was coming
and should have been prepared for it at the time it was given. To wait and think about it is just not

Minutes of the November 15, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-9-

9%



appropriate. As a Manager who worked for Douglas County, if she gave a review to her employees
but said she had to think about giving them an increase, her employees would not have been happy,
there would have been problems. It is just not right.

Member of the public, Brooke Thompson stated that Chris just received a good review, and the
board does not want to give him a raise. It is not fair; he is doing a great job. We have come so far
in the last two years, the progress we have made with employee moral from the previous General
Manager has increased so much. Not giving Chris a raise will hinder that progress, what it will do to
IHGID will not be good. He is not even asking for the same amount that the rest of the employees
received. He deserves a raise; we are only talking about a couple thousand dollars.

Trustee Siegman motioned to approve a 7.0% merit increase to General Manager Chris Johnson’s
annual salary based on his successful performance evaluation. Vice Chairman Stulac seconded.
Motion passed 4-0. Yay by Chairman Dunham, Vice Chairman Stulac, Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano
and Trustee Siegman. Trustee Garcia abstained from voting.

8. Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the October 18, 2023,
Board Meeting.

Vice Chairman Stulac motioned to approve Draft Minutes from the October 18, 2023, Board
Meeting. Chairman Dunham seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

9. Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence
Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications
received by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the
district. No action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request
such item or topic be placed on a future agenda.

10. Adjournment

Trustee Garcia motioned to adjourn the meeting. Chairman Dunham seconded. Motion

carried unanimously.

Meeting adjourned at 8:21P.M.

Minutes of the November 15, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting

19



FINAL APPROVED MINUTES AS PRESENTED

Secretary/Treasurer
Vicky Lufrano

Minutes of the November 15, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-4 -



